DEERE & CO Form DEF 14A January 15, 2009

SCHEDULE 14A

(Rule 14a-101)

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN PROXY STATEMENT

SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant [x] Filed by a Party other than the Registrant [_]
Check the appropriate box: [_] Preliminary Proxy Statement [_] Confidential, For Use of the
DEERE & COMPANY
(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)
(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if Other Than the Registrant)
Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box): [x] No fee required. [_] Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11.
1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
 2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies: 3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (see forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined): 4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
5) Total fee paid:
[_] Fee paid previously with preliminary materials: [_] Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing fo which
the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the form or
schedule and the date of its filing.
1) Amount previously paid:

2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
3) Filing Party:
 4) Date Filed:

DEERE & COMPANY

One John Deere Place Moline, Illinois 61265

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

February 25, 2009

Deere s annual stockholders meeting will be held on Wednesday, February 25, 2009, at 10:00 a.m. Central Standard Time at Deere s headquarters at One John Deere Place, Moline in Rock Island County, Illinois. You can find directions to our headquarters on the back cover of the proxy statement. At the annual meeting, stockholders will be asked to:

1.	Elect the following directors (see page 4); Crandall C. Bowles Vance D. Coffman Clayton M. Jones Thomas H. Patrick
2.	Ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Deere s independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2009 (see page 6);
3.	Vote on stockholder proposals (see pages 7 to 14); and
4. You may vote at the	Consider any other business properly brought before the meeting. meeting if you were a Deere stockholder at the close of business on December 31, 2008.

To be sure that your shares are properly represented at the meeting, whether you attend or not, please sign, date and promptly mail the enclosed proxy card or voter instruction form in the enclosed envelope, or vote through the telephone or Internet voting procedures described on the proxy card or voter instruction form. If your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other holder of record, telephone or Internet voting will be available to you only if offered by them. Their procedures should be described on the voting form they send to you.

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

WE URGE YOU TO VOTE USING TELEPHONE OR INTERNET VOTING, IF AVAILABLE TO YOU, OR BY SIGNING, DATING AND RETURNING THE ENCLOSED PROXY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. NO POSTAGE IS NECESSARY IF IT IS MAILED IN THE UNITED STATES.

Along with the attached proxy statement, we are also sending you our 2008 annual report, which includes our financial statements. Most of you can elect to view future proxy statements and annual reports over the Internet

instead of receiving paper copies in the mail. Please refer to page 3 of the proxy statement and your proxy card for further information.

For the Board of Directors,

Moline, Illinois January 15, 2009 GREGORY R. NOE Secretary

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
Proxy Statement	1
Annual Report	3
Electronic Delivery of Proxy Statement and Annual Report	3
<u>Householding Information</u>	4
Election of Directors	4
Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	6
Fees Paid to the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	6
Stockholder Proposals	7
Other Matters	14
<u>Directors Continuing in Office</u>	15
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management	17
Certain Business and Related Person Transactions	19
<u>Committees</u>	20
Compensation of Directors	25
Audit Review Committee Report	28
Compensation Discussion & Analysis (□CD&A□)	30
Compensation Committee Report	47
Executive Compensation Tables	48
Equity Compensation Plan Information	71
Stockholder Proposals and Nominations	72
Cost of Solicitation	73
Appendix AnDirector Independence Categorical Standards	A-1

PROXY STATEMENT

Why am I receiving this proxy statement?

Deere so Board of Directors (the soliciting proxies for the 2009 annual meeting of stockholders. You are receiving a proxy statement because you owned shares of Deere common stock on December 31, 2008, and that entitles you to vote at the meeting. By use of a proxy, you can vote whether or not you attend the meeting. This proxy statement describes the matters on which we would like you to vote and provides information on those matters so that you can make an informed decision.

The notice of annual meeting, proxy statement, proxy cards and voter instruction cards are being mailed to stockholders on or about January 15, 2009.

What will I be voting on?

- Election of directors (see page 4);
- Ratification of the independent registered public accounting firm (see page 6);
- Stockholder proposal for annual election of directors (see page 7);
- Stockholder proposal for advisory vote on executive compensation (see page 9); and
- Stockholder proposal for separation of CEO and Chairman responsibilities (see page 12).

How do I vote?

You can vote either *in person* at the annual meeting or *by proxy* without attending the annual meeting. We urge you to vote by proxy even if you plan to attend the annual meeting so that we will know as soon as possible that enough votes will be present for us to hold the meeting. If you attend the meeting in person, you may vote at the meeting and your proxy will not be counted.

Follow the instructions on your voting instruction form or the enclosed proxy card. Telephone and Internet voting is available to all registered and most beneficial holders.

Stockholders voting by proxy may use one of the following three options:

- filling out the enclosed *voter instruction form or proxy card*, signing it and mailing it in the enclosed postage-paid envelope;
- voting by *Internet* (if available, instructions are on the voter instruction form or proxy card); or
- voting by telephone (if available, instructions are on the voter instruction form or proxy card).

If you hold your shares in [] street name, [] please refer to the information forwarded by your bank, broker or other holder of record to see which options are available to you.

The telephone and Internet voting facilities for stockholders will close at 11:59 p.m. eastern standard time on February 24, 2009. If you vote over the Internet, you may incur costs, such as telephone and Internet access charges, for which you will be responsible. The telephone and Internet voting procedures are designed to authenticate stockholders and to allow you to confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded.

If you hold shares through one of Deere semployee savings plans, your vote must be received by February 20, 2009, or the shares represented by the card will not be voted.

Can I change my vote?

Yes. At any time before your proxy is voted, you may change your vote by:

- revoking it by written notice to the Secretary of Deere at the address on the cover of this proxy statement;
- delivering a later-dated proxy (including a telephone or Internet vote); or
- voting in person at the meeting.

1

If you hold your shares in [] street name,[] please refer to the information forwarded by your bank, broker or other holder of record for procedures on revoking or changing your proxy.

How many votes do I have?

You will have one vote for every share of Deere common stock that you owned on December 31, 2008.

How many shares are entitled to vote?

There are 421,032,441 shares of Deere common stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the meeting. Each share is entitled to one vote. There is no cumulative voting.

How many votes must be present to hold the meeting?

Under Deere□s Bylaws, a majority of the votes that can be cast must be present, in person or by proxy, to hold the annual meeting.

How many votes are needed for the proposals to pass?

- Nominees for director who receive the majority of votes cast will be elected as a director. The number of shares voted [for] a nominee must exceed the number of votes [against] that nominee. In the unlikely event the number of nominees exceeds the number of directors to be elected, the nominees who receive the most votes will be elected as directors.
- The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or by proxy must be cast in favor of the ratification of the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm.
- The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or by proxy must be cast in favor of each of the stockholder proposals.

What if I vote \square abstain \square ?

A vote to \square abstain \square on the election of directors will have *effect* on the outcome. A vote to \square abstain \square on the other proposals will have the effect of a vote *against*.

If you vote <code>[abstain,[]</code> your shares will be counted as present for purposes of determining whether enough votes are present to hold the annual meeting.

What if I don treturn my proxy card and don t attend the annual meeting?

If you are a holder of record (that is, your shares are registered in your own name with our transfer agent) and you don tvote your shares, your shares will not be voted.

Under rules of the New York Stock Exchange ([NYSE[]), if you hold your shares in [street name,[] and you don[t give your bank, broker or other holder of record specific voting instructions for your shares, your record holder can vote your shares on the election of directors, the ratification of the independent registered public accounting firm and the stockholder proposal for annual elections that is supported by Deere. However, your record holder cannot vote your shares on the stockholder proposals for an advisory vote on executive compensation and the separation of CEO and Chairman responsibilities.

If you don to give your record holder specific voting instructions and your record holder does not vote, the votes will be broker non-votes. Broker non-votes will be counted as present for purposes of determining whether enough votes are present to hold the annual meeting.

What happens if a nominee for director declines or is unable to accept election?

If you vote by proxy, and if unforeseen circumstances make it necessary for the Board to substitute another person for a nominee, we will vote your shares for that other person.

2

Is my vote confidential?

Yes. Your voting records will not be disclosed to us except:

- as required by law;
- to the inspectors of voting; or
- if the election is contested.

The tabulator, the proxy solicitation agent and the inspectors of voting must comply with confidentiality guidelines that prohibit disclosure of votes to Deere. The tabulator of the votes and at least one of the inspectors of voting will be independent of Deere and its officers and directors.

If you are a holder of record or an employee savings plan participant, and you write comments on your proxy card, your comments will be provided to us, but your vote will remain confidential.

ANNUAL REPORT

Will I receive a copy of Deere s annual report?

Unless you have previously elected to view our annual reports over the Internet, we have mailed you our annual report for the year ended October 31, 2008, with this proxy statement. The annual report includes Deere audited financial statements, along with other financial information, and we urge you to read it carefully.

How can I receive a copy of Deere ☐s 10-K?

You can obtain, free of charge, a copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended October 31, 2008, by:

- accessing Deere\s Internet site at www.JohnDeere.com/stock; or
- writing to:

Deere & Company Stockholder Relations One John Deere Place Moline, Illinois 61265-8098

You can also obtain a copy of Deere \square s Form 10-K and other periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (\square SEC \square) from the SEC \square s EDGAR database at www.sec.gov.

ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF PROXY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL REPORT

Can I access Deere s proxy materials and annual report electronically? Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Stockholder Meeting to be Held on February 25, 2009. The proxy statement and annual report to security holders are available on Deere s Internet site at www.JohnDeere.com/stock.

Most stockholders can elect to view future proxy statements and annual reports over the Internet instead of receiving paper copies in the mail.

You can choose this option and save Deere the cost of producing and mailing these documents by:

- following the instructions provided on your proxy card or voter instruction form;
- following the instructions provided when you vote over the Internet; or
- going to http://enroll.icsdelivery.com/de and following the instructions provided.

3

If you choose to view future proxy statements and annual reports over the Internet, you will receive an e-mail message next year containing the Internet address to use to access Deere\[\] s proxy statement and annual report. The e-mail also will include instructions for voting over the Internet. You will have the opportunity to opt out at any time by following the instructions on http://enroll.icsdelivery.com/de. You do not have to re-elect Internet access each year.

HOUSEHOLDING INFORMATION

What is \square householding \square ?

We have adopted a procedure called [householding, which has been approved by the SEC. Under this procedure, a single copy of the annual report and proxy statement will be sent to any household at which two or more stockholders reside if they appear to be members of the same family, unless one of the stockholders at that address notifies us that they wish to receive individual copies. This procedure reduces our printing costs and fees.

Stockholders who participate in householding will continue to receive separate proxy cards.

Householding will not affect dividend check mailings in any way.

If a single copy of the annual report and proxy statement was delivered to an address that you share with another stockholder, we will promptly deliver a separate copy if you make a written or oral request to Deere & Company Stockholder Relations, One John Deere Place, Moline, Illinois 61265-8098, (309) 765-4539.

How do I revoke my consent to the householding program?

If you are a holder of record and share an address and last name with one or more other holders of record, and you wish to continue to receive separate annual reports, proxy statements and other disclosure documents, you must revoke your consent by contacting Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. ([Broadridge]), either by calling toll free at (800) 542-1061 or by writing to Broadridge, Householding Department, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, New York 11717. You will be removed from the householding program within 30 days of receipt of the revocation of your consent.

A number of brokerage firms have instituted householding. If you hold your shares in [street name, please contact your bank, broker or other holder of record to request information about householding.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Crandall C. Bowles, Vance D. Coffman, Clayton M. Jones and Thomas H. Patrick are to be elected for terms expiring at the annual meeting in 2012.

The Corporate Governance Committee of the Board recommended these individuals to the Board and the Board nominated them.

Each nominee age, present position, principal occupations during the past five or more years, positions with Deere and directorships in other companies appears below.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE [FOR] ALL FOUR NOMINEES.

4

Name and Age at December 31, 2008 Crandall C. Bowles Age 61 Director from 1990 to 1994 and since 1999 Present Position, Principal Occupations during the Past Five Years,
Positions with Deere and Other Directorships
Chairman of Springs Industries, Inc. and Chairman, The Springs
Company

- Chairman of Springs Industries, Inc. (home furnishings) and The Springs Company since August 2007
- Co-Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer of Springs Global US, Inc. and Springs Global Participacoes S. A. - January 2006 to August 2007
- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Springs Industries, Inc. -April 1998 to January 2006
- Director of Deere from 1990 to 1994 and since 1999. Chair of Corporate Governance Committee and member of Compensation and Executive Committees
- Other directorships: JP Morgan Chase & Company

Retired Chairman of Lockheed Martin Corporation

Vance D. Coffman Age 64

Director since 2004

Clayton M. Jones Age 59

Director since 2007

Thomas H. Patrick

Age 65

Director since 2000

- Retired Chairman of Lockheed Martin Corporation (aerospace, defense and information technology) since April 2005
- Chairman of Lockheed Martin Corporation April 1998 to April 2005
- Chief Executive Officer of Lockheed Martin Corporation August 1997 to August 2004
- Director of Deere since 2004. Member of Compensation and Corporate Governance Committees
- Other directorships: 3M Company and Amgen Corporation

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Rockwell Collins, Inc.

- Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Rockwell Collins, Inc. (aviation electronics and communications) since June 2002
- Director of Deere since August 2007. Member of Compensation and Pension Plan Oversight Committees
- Other directorships: Rockwell Collins, Inc. and Unisys Corporation

Chairman of New Vernon Capital, LLC

- Chairman of New Vernon Capital, LLC (private equity fund) since 2003
- Executive Vice Chairman of Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. November 2002 to July 2003
- Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. - February 2000 to November 2002
- Director of Deere since 2000. Chair of Pension Plan Oversight Committee and member of Audit Review and Executive Committees
- Other directorships: Baldwin & Lyons, Inc. and Computer Sciences Corporation

5

RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Review Committee has approved the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP to serve as the independent registered public accounting firm to audit Deere□s financial statements and internal controls over financial reporting for fiscal 2009. The Audit Review Committee and the Board are requesting that stockholders ratify this appointment as a means of soliciting stockholders□ opinions and as a matter of good corporate practice.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the meeting is required to ratify the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP. If the stockholders do not ratify the selection, the Audit Review Committee will consider any information submitted by the stockholders in connection with the selection of the independent registered public accounting firm for the next fiscal year. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Review Committee, in its discretion, may direct the appointment of a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if the Audit Review Committee believes such a change would be in the best interest of Deere and its stockholders.

We expect that a representative of Deloitte & Touche LLP will be at the annual meeting. This representative will have an opportunity to make a statement and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE [FOR] THE RATIFICATION OF THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM.

FEES PAID TO THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

For the years ended October 31, 2008 and 2007, professional services were performed by Deloitte & Touche, LLP, the member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and their respective affiliates (collectively, \square Deloitte & Touche \square).

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed include amounts for the audit of Deere annual financial statements, the reviews of the financial statements included in Deere Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, including services related thereto such as comfort letters, statutory audits, attest services, consents and accounting consultations. Audit fees for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2008 and 2007, were \$14.3 million and \$13.0 million, respectively.

Audit-Related Fees

During the last two fiscal years, Deloitte & Touche has provided Deere with assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit of Deere s financial statements. The aggregate fees billed for such audit-related services for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2008 and 2007, were \$0.8 million and \$0.6 million, respectively. These services included audits of financial statements of employee benefit plans and various attestation services.

6

Tax Fees

There were no fees billed for tax services for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2008 and October 31, 2007.

All Other Fees

There were no fees billed for services not included above for the fiscal years ended October 31, 2008 and October 31, 2007.

Pre-approval of Services by the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit Review Committee has adopted a policy for pre-approval of audit and permitted non-audit services by Deere independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit Review Committee will consider annually and, if appropriate, approve the provision of audit services by its independent registered public accounting firm and consider and, if appropriate, pre-approve the provision of certain defined audit and non-audit services. The Audit Review Committee will also consider on a case-by-case basis and, if appropriate, approve specific services that are not otherwise pre-approved.

Any proposed engagement that does not fit within the definition of a pre-approved service may be presented to the Audit Review Committee for consideration at its next regular meeting or, if earlier consideration is required, to the Audit Review Committee or one or more of its members between regular meetings. The member or members to whom such authority is delegated shall report any specific approval of services at its next regular meeting. The Audit Review Committee will regularly review summary reports detailing all services being provided to Deere by its independent registered public accounting firm.

During fiscal 2008, all services by Deere independent registered public accounting firm were pre-approved by the Audit Review Committee in accordance with this policy.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

We expect the following items to be presented by stockholders at the annual meeting. Following SEC rules, other than minor formatting changes, we are reprinting the proposals and supporting statements as they were submitted to us. We take no responsibility for them. On request to the Secretary at the address listed under the \square Stockholder Proposals and Nominations \square section of this proxy statement, we will provide the names, addresses and shareholdings of the sponsors, as well as the names, addresses and shareholdings of any co-sponsors.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL # 1 ANNUAL ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A stockholder has submitted the following proposal:

STOCKHOLDER RESOLUTION

RESOLVED, that the stockholders request that the Board of Directors, in compliance with applicable law, take the steps necessary to reorganize the Board of Directors into one class subject to election each year. The implementation of the resolution should not affect the unexpired terms of directors elected to the board at or prior to the 2009 annual meeting.

7

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

The following organizations support the annual election of all members of the Board of Directors:

1. The California Public Employees Retirement System, the largest U.S. public pension fund with assets of \$250 billion as of September 20, 2007 (www.calpers-governance.org).

2. The Council of Institutional Investors, an association of 130 public, labor and corporate pension funds with assets exceeding \$3 trillion.

When directors are accountable for their actions they perform better. Staggered board terms have been found to be one of six entrenching mechanisms that are negatively correlated with company performance. See []What Matters in Corporate Governance?[] Bebchuk, Cohen, and Ferrell, Harvard Law School, Discussion Paper No. 491 (09/2004, revised 03/2005). If the Deere Board were to approve the annual election of directors it would be a strong statement that Deere is committed to good corporate governance and its long-term financial performance.

Management may argue that directors need and deserve continuity and that annual election could leave Deere without experienced directors in the event that all incumbents are voted out of office. Continuity is best assured when the performance of directors is exemplary and is deemed beneficial to the best interests of Deere and its stockholders. In the unlikely event that all incumbents were voted out of office such a decision would express dissatisfaction with them and reflect a need for complete change.

Please vote in favor of this proposal.

Deere ☐s Response ☐ Statement in Support of Proposal

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE [FOR] THIS PROPOSAL FOR THE ANNUAL ELECTION OF DIRECTORS FOR THE FOLLOWING REASONS:

The Board has given careful consideration to this proposal and recommends that you vote $\lceil for \rceil$ the proposal.

Background

The Board S Corporate Governance Committee, which is comprised entirely of independent directors, regularly reviews and considers a broad range of corporate governance issues affecting Deere. The Board believes that the existing classified structure of the Deere Board has promoted continuity and stability and has facilitated the

Board sability to focus on Deeres strategic planning and performance. Contrary to the assertions in the Supporting Statement submitted with the Stockholder Proposal, Deere has achieved record performance over the last five years with a classified Board structure.

The Board recognizes, however, that some commentators believe that annual elections increase a board saccountability to stockholders. The Board also acknowledges the growing sentiment among stockholders, including a number of institutional investor groups, in favor of annual elections. The Board further recognizes that many of these groups consider adoption of a declassified board structure an emerging corporate governance best practice trend. In response to this trend, numerous premier companies are in the process of adopting or have adopted this practice. In recognition of these factors, the Board has determined that it is now in the best interest of Deere and Deere stockholders to take steps to implement the proposal for annual election of directors.

8

Effect of Proposal

Approval of this proposal would advise the Board that a majority of Deere stockholders voting at the meeting would prefer that the Board take the necessary steps to reorganize the directors into one class subject to election each year. Steps to affirmatively respond to the advisory vote include Board authorization of amendments to the company bylaws and a proposed amendment, for stockholder approval, to the company articles of incorporation.

FOR THE REASONS STATED, DEERE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THIS PROPOSAL FOR ANNUAL ELECTION OF DIRECTORS.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL #2 ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

A stockholder has submitted the following proposal:

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL

RESOLVED, that stockholders urge the Board of Directors to adopt a policy that gives the stockholders the opportunity at each annual meeting of stockholders to vote on an advisory resolution, proposed by management, to ratify the compensation of the named executive officers (NEOs) set forth in the proxy statement Summary Compensation Table (the SCT) and the accompanying narrative disclosure of material factors provided to understand the SCT (but not the Compensation Discussion and Analysis). The proposal submitted to stockholders should make clear that the vote is non-binding and would not affect any compensation paid or awarded to any NEO.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

The following organizations support annual stockholder advisory votes on executive compensation:

- 1. The California Public Employees Retirement System, the largest U.S. public pension fund with assets of \$250 billion as of September 20, 2007 (www.calpers-governance.org).
- 2. The Council of Institutional Investors, an association of 130 public, labor and corporate pension funds with assets exceeding \$3 trillion,
- 3. 76% of the members of the Chartered Financial Analyst Institute.

Boards in the United States, including Aflac, Verizon, Risk Metrics, Par Pharmaceuticals and Blockbuster have concluded that submitting executive compensation to stockholders for ratification is the right thing to do. Companies in other countries such as the United Kingdom and Australia allow stockholders to cast an advisory vote on executive compensation.

A stockholder advisory vote on executive compensation will enhance constructive communication between stockholders and the board on the subject of compensation as well as improve transparency in setting executive compensation. Directors should be held to a high standard of accountability in explaining and justifying compensation policies and decisions in terms of aligning executive performance with the creation of stockholder value.

Stockholder voting will promote substantive dialogue, encourage independent thinking by the board and stimulate healthy debate for the purpose of holding management accountable for stock performance.

Please vote in favor of this proposal.

C

Deere s Response Statement in Opposition to Proposal

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE [AGAINST] THIS PROPOSAL TO ADOPT AN ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION FOR THE FOLLOWING REASONS:

The Board has given careful consideration to this proposal and has concluded for the reasons described below that the adoption of this resolution is unnecessary and is not in the best interests of Deere and its stockholders.

The Board recognizes the importance of executive compensation to the overall long-term performance of Deere. Deere compensation philosophy is to pay for performance, support Deere business strategies and pay competitively. In the compensation Discussion Analysis (compensation of this proxy statement, Deere has endeavored to provide stockholders with a detailed and thorough description of the company compensation program, including the philosophy and strategy underpinning the program, the individual elements of the compensation program and how Deere compensation plans are administered. Deere compensation programs consist of elements designed to complement each other and reward achievement of short-term and long-term objectives.

Deere Compensation Committee (Committee), composed entirely of independent directors, is responsible for reviewing and approving the compensation of Deere executives. Beginning in fiscal 2009, the Committee will no longer approve CEO compensation and instead will provide recommendations for CEO compensation to be approved by the independent members of the Board.

The Committee considers a variety of information to determine the appropriate level of competitive and equitable executive pay. The Committee retains an independent outside executive compensation consultant to assist with compensation decisions and provide peer group data which the Committee uses to benchmark Deere compensation programs and performance. While the Committee is able to use this information to timely evaluate and set executive pay for the relevant performance period, an advisory stockholder vote would take place several months after the relevant performance period has ended. Therefore, an advisory vote is likely to be more reflective of current market conditions, rather than a consideration of the compensation awarded or recommended by the Committee for the relevant performance period that was based on information and analysis available to the Committee at the time.

The Board welcomes and values the input of Deere stockholders. A simple yes or no advisory vote on Deere sexcutive compensation, however, would not provide the Board with any clear indication of the meaning of the vote. For example, a stockholder vote against ratifying executive compensation, would reflect dissatisfaction, but would not communicate stockholder views of the merits, limitations or preferred enhancements of Deere sexcutive compensation. If the Board is forced to speculate on the meaning of the advisory vote, the vote will be of little benefit to stockholders, Deere or the Board.

Moreover, as described in the <code>[Committees[]</code> section of this proxy statement, Deere stockholders already have an available mechanism to communicate with the Board. Stockholders can send correspondence directly to Deere[]s Corporate Secretary, who will then submit the correspondence to the Board. Stockholders can also communicate directly with the presiding non-management director of the Board by sending correspondence directly to that director. The communication mechanisms that exist today already give Deere stockholders the opportunity to provide specific and direct feedback to the Board about compensation issues.

10

Further, Deere does not believe that the proposed advisory vote is necessary to ensure that Deere scompensation programs are aligned with the interests of its stockholders. The Board believes that Deere compensation practices and programs serve the interests of Deere stockholders by providing compensation that is performance-based with a view towards maximizing long-term stockholder value. With specific reference to Mr. Lane, as noted in the CD&A, the Board believes that his compensation is supported by numerous factors including: Deere sperformance; benchmarking to Deere stockholder group set forth in the CD&A; and the breadth of Mr. Lane sexecutive and operating responsibilities for the entire global enterprise. During the past five years under Mr. Lane seed and operating responsibilities for the entire global enterprise. During the past five years under Mr. Lane seed of those years. The Board believes that compensation of Deere sexecutives, including Mr. Lane, over that same time period is appropriate, in line with Deere sperformance and serves stockholders interests.

The proposal asserts that companies in other countries like the United Kingdom, allow an advisory vote on executive compensation. The Board believes that comparing U.S. compensation practices to those in other countries like the United Kingdom is inappropriate. Because an advisory stockholder vote on executive compensation is mandatory for all public United Kingdom companies, no one United Kingdom company is competitively disadvantaged by this requirement. Deere, on the other hand, could find it more difficult to recruit and retain executive talent if it became one of the few U.S. companies to adopt an advisory vote, as the practice could lead to a perception that compensation opportunities at Deere may be limited compared to opportunities at companies that have not adopted this practice. Moreover, an advisory vote on executive compensation is not a common practice within Deere speer group (as identified in the CD&A).

Effect of Proposal

It is important to note that stockholder approval of this proposal would not require a stockholder advisory vote on executive compensation. Approval of this proposal would advise the Board that a majority of Deere stockholders voting at the meeting favor a change and would prefer that the Board take the necessary steps to adopt a policy for a stockholder advisory vote on executive compensation. In addition, there may be other factors that could affect the Board decision regarding this proposal, such as a decision by Congress to adopt legislation relating to executive compensation.

The Board believes that the Committee is in the best position to consider the extensive information and factors necessary to make independent, objective and competitive compensation recommendations and decisions that are in the best interest of Deere and its stockholders. The Committee should have flexibility in making the appropriate compensation recommendations and decisions so that Deere can motivate and competitively compensate Deere executives in alignment with Deere sperformance. The Board believes that current communication mechanisms exist to provide the Board with stockholder feedback about Board decisions, including, but not limited to, Deere executive compensation.

FOR THE REASONS STATED, DEERE S BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE AGAINST THIS PROPOSAL TO ADOPT AN ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

11

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSAL #3 SEPARATION OF CEO AND CHAIRMAN RESPONSIBILITIES

A stockholder has submitted the following proposal:

STOCKHOLDER RESOLUTION

RESOLVED, that the stockholders urge the Board of Directors to take the necessary steps to amend the by-laws to require that an independent director shall serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors, and that the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall not concurrently serve as Chief Executive Officer.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

The CEO of Deere is also the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

The following organizations support having an independent director as chairman of the Board of Directors and that the chairman not serve concurrently as CEO:

1. The California Public Employees Retirement System, the largest U.S. public pension fund with assets of \$250 billion as of September 20, 2007 (www.calpers-governance.org).

2. The Council of Institutional Investors, an association of 130 public, labor and corporate pension funds with assets exceeding \$3 trillion (www.cii.org).

Gary Wilson, the chairman of Northwest Airlines, a director of Yahoo and former director of Disney has written: [America[s most serious corporate governance problem is the Imperial CEO[a leader who is both chairman of the company[s board of directors as well as its chief executive officer. Such a CEO can dominate his board and is accountable to no one.

This arrangement creates a conflict of interest, because the chairman is responsible for leading an independent board of directors. The board primary responsibility on behalf of the owners, is to hire, oversee, and if necessary, fire the CEO. If the CEO is also the chairman, then he leads a board that is responsible for evaluating, compensating and potentially firing himself.

The result of this conflict of interest is excessive CEO compensation and undeserved job security***. Reprinted from The Wall Street Journal@July 9, 2008, Down Jones & Company.

In 2007, the Chairman/CEO of Deere was paid 4.375 times the average compensation of the other name executive officers (NEOs) and in 2006 received 4.86 times the average number of stock options they received. Moody\[\] s Investor Services has a guideline that CEO pay should not exceed three times the average of the other NEOs.

According to Michael Kesner, Moody seels that anything greater then that reflects poorly on corporate governance and suggests that the CEO has undue influence on the board (Chicago Tribune, May 27, 2008). Kesner is with Deloitte Consulting, part of Deloitte & Touche which is Deeres independent accountant. Moody rates corporate bonds and the rating affects the cost of borrowing.

Mr. Wilson noted that many European countries require that the CEO and chairman positions be separate and that their CEOs are paid less then American CEOs. In 2006 the 20 highest paid European CEOs made only 1/3 as much as the 20 highest paid American CEOs. See Executive Excess 2007, The Staggering Social Cost of U.S. Business Leadership, Institute for Policy Studies and United for a Fair Economy.

12

The CEOs of Enron, World Com and Tyco, legends of mismanagement, also served as Chairman.

Please vote in favor of this proposal.

Deere S Response Statement in Opposition to Proposal

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE [AGAINST] THIS PROPOSAL TO SEPARATE CEO AND CHAIRMAN RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FOLLOWING REASONS:

The Board has given careful consideration to this proposal and has concluded for the reasons described below that the adoption of this resolution is unnecessary and is not in the best interests of Deere and its stockholders.

While some of the conventional functions for the Chairman have been and are shared by all directors, the Chairman position has traditionally been held by Deere S Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The Board believes that the decision as to who should serve as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and whether the offices should be combined or separated is the proper responsibility of the Board. The Board members have considerable experience and knowledge about the challenges and opportunities Deere faces. The Board, therefore, is in the best position to evaluate Deere surrent and future needs and to judge how the capabilities of Deere surrent and senior management can be most effectively organized to meet those needs. The Board believes that, at the present time, the most effective leadership structure for Deere is for Robert Lane to serve as both Chairman and CEO.

The proposals supporting statement asserts that combining the CEO and Chairman functions can create a conflict of interest and allow the CEO to dominate the Board. Deere has strong governance structures and processes in place to ensure the independence of its Board, eliminate conflicts of interest and prevent dominance of the Board by senior management. This structure provides for independent discussion among directors and for independent evaluation of, and communication with, many members of senior management. These governance processes are reflected in the Corporate Governance Polices and the various Board Committee charters that are available on Deeres web site and include the following:

- Some conventional functions of the Chairman, such as agenda setting for Board and committee meetings, are shared by all directors.
- The Board utilizes the concept of a presiding director whereby Board committee chairs act as □presiding directors on specific subjects for Board discussions.
- Any Board member has access to any Deere employee. In addition, Board committees have access to and may consult with independent advisors, as each committee deems appropriate.
- Deere S CEO is the only active or former Deere employee currently on the Board.
- The Board receives suggestions for director candidates from stockholders and from directors. The Corporate Governance Committee can also elect to retain a director placement consultant. The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for screening director candidates and making candidate recommendations to the full Board.
- At every Board meeting any director may request that the Board go into executive session without the CEO present. The directors may meet in executive session, without the CEO, at any time, and are scheduled for non-management executive sessions at the December and May Board meetings. Committee chairs preside over these executive sessions on a rotating basis.

13

The proposal seems to imply that combining the positions of CEO and Chairman may lead to excessive CEO pay. As previously stated and as described in the Compensation Discussion & Analysis ($\square CD&A\square$) section of this proxy statement, Deere \square s compensation program is designed to pay for performance. A significant portion of the compensation paid to Deere \square s executives in the form of short-term, mid-term and long-term incentive awards is at risk because it is directly tied to company performance. During the past five years under Mr. Lane \square s leadership, Deere has experienced record performance considering market conditions. Much of Mr. Lane \square s compensation was due to Deere \square s attainment of pre-determined performance targets, as more specifically described in the CD&A.

Effect of Proposal

It is important to note that stockholder approval of this proposal would not in itself separate the CEO and Chairman functions. Approval of this proposal would advise the Board that a majority of Deere⊡s stockholders voting at the meeting favor a change and would prefer that the Board take the necessary steps to separate the Chairman and CEO functions.

Requiring that an independent director serve as Chairman of the Board is not desirable because it would unduly impair the Board\(\partial\) s flexibility to annually elect the individual it deems best suited to serve as Board

chairman. Deere and its stockholders are best served when the Board has the flexibility to determine who should serve as Board chairman at any particular time depending upon the circumstances.

FOR THE REASONS STATED, DEERE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE GAGAINST THIS PROPOSAL TO SEPARATE CEO AND CHAIRMAN RESPONSIBILITIES.

OTHER MATTERS

We do not know of any other matters that will be considered at the annual meeting. If, however, any other proper business should come before the meeting, we will have discretionary authority to vote according to our best judgment.

14

DIRECTORS CONTINUING IN OFFICE

The seven persons named below are now serving as directors of Deere. Their terms will expire at the annual meetings in 2010 and 2011, as indicated. Their ages, present positions, principal occupations during the past five or more years, positions with Deere and directorships in other companies appear below.

Pursuant to Deere s mandatory retirement age policy for directors as described in the Stockholder Proposal and Nominations section of this proxy statement, Mr. T. Kevin Dunnigan, Mr. Arthur Kellyand Mr. Antonio Madero B. will be leaving the Board effective with the 2009 annual meeting. The size of the Board is being reduced accordingly.

Mr. David B. Speer was appointed to the Board in November 2008 for a term expiring at the annual meeting in 2010.

TERMS EXPIRING AT ANNUAL MEETING IN 2010

Name and Age at December 31, 2008 Robert W. Lane Age 59 Director since 2000 Present Position, Principal Occupations during the Past Five Years,
Positions with Deere and Other Directorships
Chairman. President and Chief Executive Officer of Deere

- Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Deere since August 2000
- Director of Deere since 2000. Chair of the Executive Committee
- Other directorships: General Electric Company and Verizon Communications, Inc.

Aulana L. Peters Age 67

Director since 2002

Retired Partner of Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP

- Retired Partner of Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP (law firm) since 2000
- Member of the International Public Interest Oversight Board for auditing, ethics and accounting education standards since February 2005
- Member of the Public Oversight Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants - January 2001 to March 2002
- Commissioner of the Securities and Exchange Commission 1984 to 1988
- Director of Deere since 2002. Member of Audit Review and Corporate
 Governance Committees
- Other directorships: 3M Company and Northrop Grumman Corporation

David B. Speer Age 57

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Illinois Tool Works Inc.

Director since 2008

- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Illinois Tool Works Inc. (engineered components, industrial systems and consumables) since May 2006
- Chief Executive Officer and President of Illinois Tool Works Inc. August 2005 to May 2006
- President of Illinois Tool Works Inc. August 2004 to August 2005
- Executive Vice President of Illinois Tool Works Inc. October 1995 to August 2004
- Director of Deere since November 2008. Member of Compensation and Pension Plan Oversight Committees
- Other directorships: Illinois Tool Works Inc. and Rockwell Automation, Inc.

15

TERMS EXPIRING AT ANNUAL MEETING IN 2011

Name and Age at **December 31, 2008** Charles O. Holliday, Jr. Age 60 Director since 2007

Present Position, Principal Occupations during the Past Five Years, **Positions with Deere and Other Directorships Chairman of DuPont**

- Chairman of DuPont (agriculture, electronics, materials science, safety and security, and biotechnology) since December 2008
- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of DuPont

 ☐ 1999 to December 2008
- Director of Deere since May 2007. Member of Audit Review and Corporate **Governance Committees**
- Other directorships: E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company

Dipak C. Jain Age 51 Director since 2002

Dean, Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University

- Dean, Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University, Evanston, Illinois since July 2001
- Associate Dean for Academic Affairs, Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University - 1996 to 2001
- Sandy and Morton Goldman Professor of Entrepreneurial Studies and Professor of Marketing, Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University - 1994 to July 2001
- Visiting professor of marketing at Sasin Graduate Institute of Business Administration at Chulalongkorn University, Bangkok, Thailand; Nijenrode University, The Netherlands; Otto Bescheim Graduate School of Management, Koblenz, Germany; IIT, Delhi, India; Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, China; Recanati Graduate School of Business Administration at Tel Aviv University, Israel
- Director of Deere since 2002. Member of Audit Review and Pension Plan **Oversight Committees**
- Other directorships: Hartmarx Corporation, Northern Trust Corporation and Reliance Industries Limited

Joachim Milberg Age 65

Director since 2003

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Bayerische Motoren Werke (BMW) AG

- Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Bayerische Motoren Werke (BMW) AG (motor vehicles) since May 2004
- Retired Chief Executive Officer of BMW AG since May 2002
- Chairman of the Board of Management and Chief Executive Officer of BMW AG - February 1999 to May 2002
- Director of Deere since 2003. Member of Audit Review and Corporate **Governance Committees**
- Other directorships: Bertelsmann AG, BMW AG, Festo AG, SAP AG and ZF Friedrichshafen AG

Name and Age at December 31, 2008 Richard B. Myers Age 66 Director since 2006

Present Position, Principal Occupations during the Past Five Years, Positions with Deere and Other Directorships Retired Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff and Retired General of the United States Air Force

- Retired Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff (principal military advisor to the President, the Secretary of Defense, and the National Security Council) and Retired General of the United States Air Force since September 2005
- Colin L. Powell Chair for National Security, Leadership, Character and Ethics at the National Defense University since March 2006
- Foundation Professor of Military History and Leadership at Kansas State University since February 2006
- Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff and General of the United States Air Force - October 2001 to September 2005
- Director of Deere since April 2006. Member of Compensation and Pension Plan Oversight Committees
- Other directorships: Aon Corporation, Northrop Grumman Corporation and United Technologies Corporation

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table shows the number of shares of Deere common stock beneficially owned as of December 31, 2008, (unless otherwise indicated) by:

- each person, who, to our knowledge, beneficially owns more than 5% of our common stock;
- each of our directors;
- our Chief Executive Officer ([CEO]) and the other four executive officers named in the Executive Compensation Tables; and
- all individuals who served as directors or executive officers at December 31, 2008, as a group.

A beneficial owner of stock is a person who has sole or shared voting power, meaning the power to control voting decisions, or sole or shared investment power, meaning the power to cause the sale of the stock.

All individuals listed in the table have sole voting and investment power over the shares unless otherwise noted. As of December 31, 2008, Deere had no preferred stock issued or outstanding.

The table also includes information about exercisable stock options credited to executive officers under compensation plans.

In addition to the number of shares shown in the table, directors own the restricted stock units ([RSUs]) and deferred stock units listed in footnote (2) following the table. The RSUs represent stock equivalent units awarded under the Non-Employee Director Stock Ownership Plan. The RSUs are payable only in Deere common stock following retirement. The deferred stock units are credited to directors under the Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan. The value of the units are subject to the same market risks as Deere common stock. The units are payable only in cash and, with limited exceptions, must be held until the director[]s retirement from the Board.

In addition to the number of shares shown in the table, executive officers own the RSUs listed in footnote (3) following the table. The RSUs represent stock equivalent units awarded under the Omnibus Equity and Incentive Plan as part of long-term compensation.

	Shares Beneficially Owned Excluding Options	Options Exercisable Within 60 Days	Percent of Shares Outstanding
Greater Than 5% Owners			
Wellington Management Company, LLP			
75 State Street			
Boston, Massachusetts 02109 (1)	21,584,880		5.1%
Directors (2)			
Crandall C. Bowles	22,716		*
Vance D. Coffman	6,532		*
T. Kevin Dunnigan	22,372		*
Charles O. Holliday, Jr.	1,160		*
Dipak C. Jain	13,234		*
Clayton M. Jones	824		*
Arthur L. Kelly	36,038		*
Robert W. Lane	315,679	999,981	*
Antonio Madero B.	22,638		*
Joachim Milberg	10,708		*
Richard B. Myers	3,176		*
Thomas H. Patrick	39,252		*
Aulana L. Peters	12,408		*
David B. Speer	500		*
Named Executive Officers (3)			
Michael J. Mack, Jr.	10,295	45,691	*
Samuel R. Allen	28,575	46,053	*
David C. Everitt	2,624	46,105	*
James A. Israel	0	42,233	*
All directors and executive			
officers as a group (22 persons) (4)	630,961	1,468,039	*

Less than 1% of the outstanding shares of Deere common stock.

(1)

The ownership information for Wellington Management Company, LLP is based on information supplied by Wellington and contained in reports of institutional investment managers filed with the SEC for the period ended September 30, 2008. Wellington holds the shares in its capacity as a registered investment advisor on behalf of numerous investment advisory clients, none of which is known to own more than five percent of Deere shares. Wellington has shared dispositive power over 21,584,880 shares and shared voting authority over 8,917,340 shares.

(2)

The table includes restricted shares awarded to directors under Deere Non-Employee Director Stock Ownership Plan. Restricted shares may not be transferred prior to retirement as a director. For the restricted shares for each director, see footnote (2) to the Fiscal 2008 Director Compensation Table. In addition to the shares listed in the table, directors own the following number of restricted stock units awarded under the non-Employee Director Stock Ownership Plan and deferred stock units credited under the Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan.

18

Edgar Filing: DEERE & CO - Form DEF 14A

	Restricted	
Director	Stock Units	Deferred Units
Mrs. Bowles	1,137	22,274
Mr. Coffman	1,137	8,748
Mr. Dunnigan	1,137	0
Mr. Holliday	1,137	0
Mr. Jain	1,137	0
Mr. Jones	1,137	0
Mr. Kelly	1,137	8,159
Mr. Madero	1,137	6,814
Mr. Milberg	1,137	0
Mr. Myers	1,137	0
Mr. Patrick	1,137	12,183
Mrs. Peters	1,137	0
Mr. Speer	320	0

(3) In addition to the shares listed in the table, executive officers own the following number of RSUs awarded under Deere□s Omnibus Equity and Incentive Plan. RSUs granted to executive officers in fiscal 2003 must be held until retirement or other permitted termination of employment before they are converted to Deere common stock. RSUs granted in fiscal 2004-2007 must be held for at least five years. RSUs granted to all eligible employees in fiscal 2008 must be held until retirement.

Executive	Restricted Units
Mr. Lane	553,615
Mr. Mack	60,476
Mr. Allen	110,654
Mr. Everitt	139,005
Mr. Israel	53,795
All executive officers	1,192,881

(4) The number of shares shown for all directors and executive officers as a group includes 14,435 shares owned jointly with family members over which the directors and executive officers share voting and investment power.

CERTAIN BUSINESS AND RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

In November 2007, the Board adopted a [Related Person Transactions Approval Policy] (the [Related Person Policy]). Under the Related Person Policy, Deere S Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing, approving and ratifying all related person transactions.

Under the Related Person Policy, a related person includes:

- (1) executive officers and directors of Deere;
- any holder of 5% or more of Deere s voting securities; and
- (3) an immediate family member of anyone in categories (1) or (2).

A related person transaction is a transaction, relationship or arrangement between a related person and Deere where:

- the amount involved exceeds \$120,000; and
- any related person (as defined above) has or will have a direct or indirect material interest in the transaction.

Each year, Deere s directors and executive officers complete annual questionnaires designed to elicit information about potential related person transactions. Deere s directors and officers must promptly advise Deere S Corporate Secretary if there are any changes to the information previously provided.

19

After consultation with Deere s General Counsel, management and outside counsel, as appropriate, Deere s Corporate Secretary determines whether the transaction is reasonably likely to be a related person transaction. Related person transactions are submitted to the Corporate Governance Committee for consideration at its next meeting. If action is required prior to the next meeting, the transaction is submitted to the Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee (Shairperson) and the Chairperson determination is then reported to the Corporate Governance Committee at its next meeting.

When evaluating potential related person transactions, the Corporate Governance Committee or the Chairperson, as applicable, considers all reasonably available relevant facts and circumstances and approves only the related person transactions determined in good faith to be in, or not inconsistent with, Deere\[\]s Code of Ethics and Business Conduct Guidelines, and the best interest of Deere\[\]s stockholders.

COMMITTEES

The Board met six times during fiscal 2008. Directors are expected to attend Board meetings, meetings of committees on which they serve and stockholder meetings. Directors are expected to spend the time needed and meet as frequently as necessary to properly discharge their responsibilities. During fiscal 2008, all directors attended 75% or more of the meetings of the Board and committees on which they served. All directors attended the annual stockholder meeting in February 2008.

Non-management directors may meet in executive session, without the CEO, at any time, and are regularly scheduled for non-management executive sessions twice each year. The committee chairpersons preside over the meetings of the non-management directors on a rotating basis as established by the Corporate Governance Committee.

If you wish to communicate with the Board you may send correspondence to Corporate Secretary, Deere & Company, One John Deere Place, Moline, Illinois 61265-8098. The Secretary will submit your correspondence to the Board or the appropriate committee, as applicable. You may communicate directly with the presiding non-management director of the Board by sending correspondence to Presiding Director, Board of Directors, Deere & Company, Department A, One John Deere Place, Moline, Illinois 61265-8098.

The Board has delegated some of its authority to five committees of the Board. These are the Executive Committee, the Compensation Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Pension Plan Oversight Committee and the Audit Review Committee.

The Compensation Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Pension Plan Oversight Committee and the Audit Review Committee have written charters that comply with current NYSE rules relating to corporate governance matters. Copies of the committee charters as well as Deere S Code of Ethics and Business Conduct Guidelines are available at www.JohnDeere.com/corpgov. A copy of these charters and policies also may be obtained upon request to the Deere & Company Stockholder Relations Department.

Pursuant to the requirements of the NYSE, the Board has adopted Corporate Governance Policies that meet or exceed the independence standards of the NYSE. Also, as part of Deere Corporate Governance Policies, the Board has adopted categorical standards and the Related Person Policy to assist the Board in evaluating the independence of each director. The categorical standards are intended to assist the Board in determining whether or not certain relationships between its directors and Deere or its subsidiaries (either directly or indirectly as a partner, stockholder, officer, director, trustee or employee of an organization that has a relationship with Deere) are material relationships for purposes of the NYSE independence standards. The categorical standards establish thresholds at which such relationships are deemed to be not material. The categorical standards are attached

as Appendix A to this proxy statement. Deere S Corporate Governance Policies, which include the categorical independence standards are available on its website at www.JohnDeere.com/corpgov. A copy also may be obtained upon request to the Deere & Company Stockholder Relations Department.

In November 2008 Deere reviewed the independence of each director, applying the independence standards set forth in Deere S Corporate Governance Policies. The review considered relationships and transactions between each director (and his or her immediate family and affiliates) and each of the following: Deere, Deere s management and Deere independent registered public accounting firm.

Based on this review, at the December 2008 Board Meeting, the Board affirmatively determined that the following directors have no material relationships with Deere and its subsidiaries and are independent as defined in Deere Corporate Governance Policies and the listing standards of the NYSE: Mrs. Bowles, Mr. Coffman, Mr. Dunnigan, Mr. Holliday, Mr. Jain, Mr. Jones, Mr. Kelly, Mr. Madero, Mr. Milberg, Mr. Myers, Mr. Patrick, Mrs. Peters and Mr. Speer. Mr. Lane is considered an inside director because of his employment as CEO and President of Deere & Company.

The Executive Committee

The Executive Committee may act on behalf of the Board if a matter requires Board action between meetings of the full Board. The Executive Committee authority concerning certain significant matters is limited by law and Deere Bylaws.

The Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee approves compensation for executive officers of Deere and makes recommendations to the Board regarding incentive and equity-based compensation plans.

The Compensation Committee s responsibilities include:

- evaluating and approving the compensation of Deere
 s executive officers, including reviewing and approving corporate performance goals and objectives related to the compensation of Deere
 s executive officers;
- evaluating the executive officers and Deere sperformance relative to compensation goals and objectives;
- determining and approving the executive officers compensation levels based on the Committees evaluation of their performance either as the Compensation Committee, or together with other independent directors (as directed by the Board);
- evaluating and approving compensation grants to executive officers under Deere
 s equity-based and incentive compensation plans, policies and procedures;
- overseeing Deere s policies on structuring compensation programs for executive officers to preserve tax deductibility;
- establishing and certifying the attainment of performance goals pursuant to section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code when required;
- exercising the powers of the Committee set forth in any compensation plan established by the Board;
- retaining and terminating any independent advisors used by the Committee to assist it in fulfilling its responsibilities;

21

- approving the fees and other retention terms of any independent advisors to the Committee:
- delegating authority to subcommittees and to Deere for administration or other duties when the Committee deems it appropriate;

- adopting procedures and guidelines as the Committee deems appropriate to carry out its oversight functions;
- producing any required reports on executive compensation required to be included in Deere s filings with the SEC;
- reviewing and discussing with Deere s management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis (CD&A) to be included in Deere s filings with the SEC:
- determining whether to recommend to the Board that the CD&A be included in Deere s filings with the SEC;
- making regular reports to the full Board on the activities of the Committee;
- evaluating annually the performance and effectiveness of the Committee and reporting to the Board on the results; and
- performing such other duties as may be assigned to the Committee by law or the Board.

The Committee retains Hewitt Associates LLC (Compensation Consultant) to provide independent advice and ongoing recommendations regarding executive compensation. The scope of the Compensation Consultant s work includes the following:

- Provide independent input for the Committee s decision-making with respect to executive compensation;
- Provide independent input for the Corporate Governance Committee s decision-making with respect to director compensation;
- Advise the Committee on how best to make compensation decisions balancing stockholder interests with those of management;
- Apprise the Committee of best practices regarding executive compensation; and
- Provide market data as a reference for the Committee to consider in evaluating base salaries and variable pay awards (both the forms of payments and the amounts) of the Deere Named Executive Officers (Named Executives).

The annual Compensation Committee report follows the CD&A section of this proxy statement. Deere sprocesses and procedures for considering and determining executive compensation are more fully described in the CD&A.

22

The Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee monitors corporate governance policies and procedures and serves as the nominating committee for Board directors. The primary functions performed by the Committee include:

- developing, recommending and monitoring corporate governance policies and procedures for Deere and the Board;
- identifying and recommending to the Board individuals to be nominated as a director;
- ensuring that the Chairman periodically reviews Deere
 s plans regarding succession of senior management with the Committee and with all other independent directors;
- making recommendations concerning the size, composition, committee structure, fees for the Board and criteria for tenure and retention of directors:
- overseeing Deere\(\pi\)s Office of Corporate Compliance;
- overseeing the evaluation of Deere s management; and
- reviewing and reporting to the Board on the performance and effectiveness of the Board and the Corporate Governance Committee.

The Committee will consider candidates for nomination as a director recommended by stockholders, directors, officers, third party search firms and other sources. In evaluating candidates, the Committee considers the needs of the Board and the attributes of the candidate (including skills, experience, international versus domestic background, diversity, age, and legal and regulatory requirements). The Committee will review all candidates in the same manner, regardless of the source of the recommendation. The Committee will consider individuals recommended by stockholders for nomination as a director in accordance with the procedures described under [Stockholder Proposals and Nominations] section of this proxy statement.

The Board has determined that under current NYSE listing standards all members of the Corporate Governance Committee are independent.

The Pension Plan Oversight Committee

The Pension Plan Oversight Committee oversees Deere s pension plans. The Committee establishes corporate policy with respect to the pension plans, and reviews asset allocation, actuarial assumptions and funding policies. The Committee also has authority to make substantive amendments and modifications to the pension plans. The Committee reports to the Board on its activities.

The Audit Review Committee

The Audit Review Committee s duties and responsibilities include, among other things:

- retaining, overseeing and evaluating an independent registered public accounting firm to audit the annual financial statements and internal control over financial reporting;
- assisting the Board in overseeing the integrity of Deere sinancial statements, compliance with legal requirements, the independent registered public accounting firm squalifications, independence and performance, and the performance of Deeres internal auditors;

23

- considering whether the provision by the independent registered public accounting firm of services not related to the annual audit and quarterly reviews is consistent with maintaining the external auditors independence;
- approving the scope of the audit in advance;
- reviewing the financial statements and the audit report with management and the independent registered public accounting firm;
- reviewing earnings and financial releases with management;
- reviewing Deere s procedures relating to business ethics;
- consulting with the internal audit staff and reviewing the internal audit function and the adequacy of the internal control over financial reporting;
- reviewing the adequacy of the Audit Review Committee charter;
- reviewing policies relating to risk assessment and management;
- setting hiring policies for employees of the independent registered public accounting firm; and
- approving all engagements for audit and non-audit services by the independent registered public accounting firm.

The Audit Review Committee reports to the Board on its activities and findings.

The Board has determined that under current NYSE listing standards all members of the Audit Review Committee are independent and financially literate. The Board also determined that Mr. Dunnigan, Mr. Holliday, Mr. Patrick and Mrs. Peters are audit committee financial experts as defined by the SEC and that

each has accounting or related financial management expertise as required by NYSE listing standards.

The Audit Review Committee annual report follows the Compensation of Directors section of this proxy statement.

2.4

The following table shows the current membership of each committee and the number of meetings held by each committee during fiscal 2008:

				Pension	
			Corporate	Plan	Audit
	Executive	Compensation	Governance	Oversight	Review
Director	Committee	Committee	Committee	Committee	Committee
Crandall C. Bowles	X	X	Chair		
Vance D. Coffman		X	X		
T. Kevin Dunnigan	X		X		Chair*
Charles O. Holliday, Jr.			X		X
Dipak C. Jain				X	X
Clayton M. Jones		X		X	
Arthur L. Kelly	X	Chair**		X	
Robert W. Lane	Chair				
Antonio Madero B.		X		X	
Joachim Milberg	_		X		X
Richard B. Myers		X		X	
Thomas H. Patrick	X			Chair	X
Aulana L. Peters			X		X
Fiscal 2008 meetings	0	4	4	2	4

- * Effective January 1, 2009, Mr. Holliday will become the Chair of the Audit Review Committee.
- ** Effective January 1, 2009, Mr. Coffman will become the Chair of the Compensation Committee.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

Deere pays non-employee directors an annual retainer along with additional fees to committee chairpersons as described below. Deere does not pay any other committee retainers or meeting fees. In addition, Deere awards non-employee directors restricted stock units ([RSUs[]) upon their election to the Board and each year during their service as directors. A person who becomes a non-employee director between annual meetings, or who serves a partial term, receives a prorated retainer and a prorated RSU award. Deere also reimburses directors for expenses related to meeting attendance. Directors who are employees receive no additional compensation for serving on the Board or its committees. The following chart describes amounts paid and the value of awards granted:

Date Approved by Corporate Governance Committee	August 2007
Effective Date of Annual Amounts	September 2007
Retainer	\$100,000
Equity Award	\$100,000
Audit Committee Chair Fee	\$15,000
Compensation Committee Chair Fee Other Committee Chair Fees	\$15,000 \$10,000

Under Deere Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan, directors may choose to defer some or all of their annual retainers until retirement as a director. A director may elect to have these deferrals invested in either an interest-bearing account or in an account with a return equivalent to an investment in Deere common stock.

Up until fiscal 2008, non-employee directors received the equity award in the form of restricted stock. Beginning in fiscal 2008, directors receive the equity award in the form of RSUs. While a director, restricted shares and RSUs may not be sold, gifted or otherwise disposed. Directors may lose their restricted shares and RSUs if their service is terminated for any reason other than retirement, disability or death. The restricted period for restricted shares and RSUs ends when the director retires from the Board, becomes permanently and totally disabled, dies, or if there is a change in control of Deere. While the restrictions are in effect, the non-employee directors may vote the restricted shares, receive dividends on the restricted shares and receive dividend equivalents on the RSUs.

25

In fiscal 2008, Deere provided the following annual compensation to non-employee directors:

Fiscal 2008 Director Compensation Table

		N	onqualified Deferred		
	Fees Earned or	Co	ompensation	All Other	
Name*	Paid in Cash (\$) (1)	Stock Awards (\$) (2)	Earnings (\$) (3)	Compensation (\$) (4)	Total (\$)
Crandall C. Bowles	\$110,000	\$99,993	\$ 0	\$ 134	\$210,127
Vance D. Coffman	\$100,000	\$99,993	\$ 0	\$28,034	\$228,027
T. Kevin Dunnigan	\$115,000	\$99,993	\$ 0	\$27,834	\$242,827
Charles O. Holliday, Jr.	\$100,000	\$99,993	\$ 0	\$28,860	\$228,853
Dipak C. Jain	\$100,000	\$99,993	\$ 13,154	\$25,430	\$238,577
Clayton M. Jones	\$100,000	\$99,993	\$ 0	\$29,337	\$229,330
Arthur L. Kelly	\$115,000	\$99,993	\$8,816	\$25,565	\$249,374
Antonio Madero B.	\$100,000	\$99,993	\$ 0	\$26,589	\$226,582
Joachim Milberg	\$100,000	\$99,993	\$ 0	\$24,394	\$224,387
Richard B. Myers	\$100,000	\$99,993	\$ 0	\$35,418	\$235,411
Thomas H. Patrick	\$110,000	\$99,993	\$ O	\$ 124	\$210,117
Aulana L. Peters	\$100,000	\$99,993	\$ 0	\$34,659	\$234,652

- * David B. Speer was elected to the Board on November 15, 2008, after the fiscal year ended on October 31, 2008, and did not receive any compensation in fiscal 2008.
- (1) All fees earned in fiscal 2008, including Committee Chairperson fees, whether paid in cash or deferred under the Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan, are included in this column.
- Represents the grant date fair value recognized on RSUs for financial statement reporting purposes in accordance with FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004) ([FAS 123R]). These amounts represent Deere[s accounting expense for these awards and do not correspond to the actual value that will be realized by the non-employee directors. All grants are fully expensed in the fiscal year granted based on the grant date price. For fiscal 2008, the grant date was March 5, 2008, and the grant price was \$87.95 (the average of the high and low price for Deere common stock on the grant date.) The non-employee director grant date is seven calendar days after the annual meeting of stockholders. The assumptions made in valuing the RSUs reported in this column are discussed in Note 24, [Stock Option and Restricted Stock Awards] of Deere[s consolidated financial statements filed with the SEC on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008. Deere recognizes the compensation cost on the RSU awards in the fiscal year they are granted because directors are eligible to receive payment of the awards upon cessation of service as a member of the Board. The following table lists the cumulative restricted shares and RSUs held by current directors as of October 31, 2008. These shares and units may not be transferred prior to retirement as a director.

Director Name Restricted Shares RSUs

Crandall C. Bowles	19,916	1,137
Vance D. Coffman	6,532	1,137
T. Kevin Dunnigan	18,372	1,137
Charles O. Holliday, Jr.	1,160	1,137
Dipak C. Jain	13,234	1,137
Clayton M. Jones	824	1,137
Arthur L. Kelly	27,638	1,137
Antonio Madero B.	22,638	1,137
Joachim Milberg	10,708	1,137
Richard B. Myers	3,176	1,137
Thomas H. Patrick	19,252	1,137
Aulana L. Peters	12,008	1,137

26

- (3) Directors are eligible to participate in the Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan. Under this plan, participants may defer part or all of their annual cash compensation. In addition, when the non-employee director retirement plan was eliminated in 1997, participating directors at that time received a lump sum deferral to the plan equal to the present value of the life annuity offered under the former retirement plan. For these deferrals, two investment choices are available:
 - an interest bearing alternative which pays interest at the end of each calendar quarter based on the prime rate as determined by the Federal Reserve Statistical Release plus 2%; or
 - an equity alternative denominated in units of Deere common stock which earns additional shares each quarter at the quarterly dividend rate on Deere common stock.

The amounts included in this column represent the above-market earnings on the interest bearing investment alternative. Above-market earnings represent the difference between the prime rate as determined by the Federal Reserve Statistical Release plus 2% and 120% of the applicable federal long-term rate.

(4) The following table provides detail about each component of the \square All Other Compensation \square column in the Fiscal 2008 Director Compensation Table:

	Personal Use			
	of Company	Misc	Tax Gross	Total All
	Aircraft	Perquisites	Ups	Other
Name	(a)	(b)	(c)	Compensation
Crandall C. Bowles	\$ 0	\$ 73	\$ 61	\$ 134
Vance D. Coffman	\$ 10,285	\$ 4,517	\$13,232	\$ 28,034
T. Kevin Dunnigan	\$ 0	\$ 17,285	\$10,549	\$ 27,834
Charles O. Holliday, Jr.	\$ 0	\$ 16,205	\$12,655	\$ 28,860
Dipak C. Jain	\$ 0	\$ 15,029	\$10,401	\$ 25,430
Clayton M. Jones	\$ 401	\$ 15,183	\$13,753	\$ 29,337
Arthur L. Kelly	\$ 0	\$ 15,109	\$10,456	\$ 25,565
Antonio Madero B.	\$ 5,101	\$ 10,613	\$10,875	\$ 26,589
Joachim Milberg	\$ 0	\$ 14,417	\$ 9,977	\$ 24,394
Richard B. Myers	\$ 0	\$ 19,958	\$15,460	\$ 35,418
Thomas H. Patrick	\$ 0	\$ 73	\$ 51	\$ 124
Aulana L. Peters	\$ 0	\$ 18,300	\$16,359	\$ 34,659

(a)

Represents spousal travel on Deere aircraft related to the November 2007 Board meeting in India. For SEC purposes, the cost of personal use of Deere aircraft is calculated based on the incremental cost to Deere. To determine the incremental cost, Deere calculates the variable costs based on usage which includes fuel costs and trip-related maintenance

on a per mile basis, plus any direct trip expenses such as on-board catering, landing/ramp fees, crew expenses and other miscellaneous variable costs. Fixed costs which do not change based on usage, such as pilot salaries, depreciation of aircraft and cost of maintenance not related to trips are excluded. Most spouses traveled on commercial or chartered flights which are included in column (b).

Represents spousal travel and other expenses related to the November 2007 Board meeting in India.

Tax gross ups are provided when expenses are incurred for business purposes, but applicable tax rules result in imputed income to the director. This column (c) shows the tax reimbursement that was provided for the expenses associated with columns (a) and (b) above.

27

The reports of the Audit Review Committee and the Compensation Committee that follow will not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this proxy statement or future filings into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates the information by reference, and will not otherwise be deemed filed under these Acts.

AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE REPORT

To the Board of Directors:

(b)

(c)

The Audit Review Committee consists of the following members of the Board of Directors: T. Kevin Dunnigan (Chair), Charles O. Holliday, Jr., Dipak C. Jain, Joachim Milberg, Thomas H. Patrick and Aulana L. Peters. Each of the members is independent as defined under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). The Audit Review Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities pertaining to the accounting, auditing and financial reporting processes of Deere & Company ([Deere]]). Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Deere internal control over financial reporting and for preparing financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Audit Review Committee is directly responsible for the appointment, oversight, compensation and retention of Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm for Deere. Deloitte & Touche LLP is responsible for performing an independent audit of Deere annual financial statements and internal control over financial reporting, and expressing opinions on (i) the conformity of Deere financial statements with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and (ii) the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

All members of the Audit Review Committee are financially literate under the applicable NYSE rules, and the following members of the Committee [] Mr. Dunnigan, Mr. Holliday, Mr. Patrick and Mrs. Peters [] are [] audit committee financial experts[] within the meaning of that term as defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) in Regulation S-K under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Audit Review Committee has a written charter describing its responsibilities, which has been approved by the Board of Directors and is available on Deere[]s website at www.deere.com/corpgov. The Audit Review Committee[]s responsibility is one of oversight. Members of the Audit Review Committee rely on the information provided and the representations made to them by: management, which has primary responsibility for establishing and maintaining appropriate internal control over financial reporting, and for Deere[]s financial statements and reports; and by the independent registered public accounting firm, which is responsible for performing an audit in accordance with Standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board - United States (PCAOB) and expressing opinions on (i) the conformity of Deere[]s financial statements with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and (ii) the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

In this context, we have reviewed and discussed with management Deere audited financial statements as of and for the year ended October 31, 2008.

We have discussed with Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm for Deere, the matters required to be discussed by PCAOB Interim Auditing Standard AU Section 380, *Communication with Audit Committees*.

We have received and reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from Deloitte & Touche LLP required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding the independent accountant \square s communications with the Audit Review Committee concerning independence, and have discussed with them their independence. We have concluded that Deloitte & Touche LLP provision of audit and non-audit services to Deere is compatible with their independence.

28

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, and exercising our business judgment, we recommend to the Board of Directors that the financial statements referred to above be included in Deere[s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008 for filing with the SEC. We have selected Deloitte & Touche LLP as Deere & Company[s independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2009, and have approved submitting the selection of the independent registered public accounting firm for ratification by the shareholders.

Audit Review Committee

T. Kevin Dunnigan (Chair) Charles O. Holliday, Jr. Dipak C. Jain Joachim Milberg Thomas H. Patrick Aulana L. Peters

29

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ([CD&A])

Introduction

The CD&A is organized as follows:

- Description of Deere strategy and compensation philosophy which is the basis for the compensation decisions made by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (☐Committee☐);
- Description of the Committee and the Compensation Consultant roles;
- Explanation of the direct compensation elements and performance metrics, how these elements are benchmarked against the marketplace and the rationale for each element;
- Analysis of total direct compensation; and
- Description of indirect compensation elements and rationale.

Deere S Aspirations and Strategy

Deere aspires to distinctively serve our customers \square those linked to the land \square through a great business. To achieve this aspiration, Deere \square s strategy is:

- Exceptional operating performance;
- Disciplined growth of shareholder value added (□SVA□); and
- Aligned high-performance teamwork.

Execution of this strategy is expected to create a sustainable business that rewards Deere sustainable customers, employees and stockholders. The following CD&A describes how Deere employees, particularly Deere Named Executive Officers (Named Executives), are rewarded through Deere sompensation programs.

Compensation Philosophy

Deere s compensation philosophy is defined in Deere s Total Rewards Strategy (TRS), which was approved by the Board in August 2002. TRS is aligned with Deere as a spirations and business strategy. TRS represents a collaboration between Deere and its salaried employees to achieve higher company performance, while maintaining Deere s core values of quality, innovation, integrity and commitment. This compensation strategy

includes base salary, short-term, mid-term and long-term incentive compensation, as well as employee benefits. TRS was communicated throughout the Deere enterprise prior to implementation in fiscal 2004 and applies to the majority of salaried employees and all of the Named Executives listed in the accompanying tables.

- Establish structures for each element of compensation that provide total reward opportunity sufficient to attract, retain and motivate high-caliber executives;
- As Named Executives assume greater responsibility:
- ullet A larger portion of their total compensation should be $[at\ risk]$ in the form of short-term, mid-term and long-term incentive awards; and
- A larger portion of their incentive awards should be focused on long-term awards to drive sustainable shareholder value;
- Provide the appropriate level of reward for performance:
- Below median total compensation for substandard company performance;
- Median total compensation for median levels of company performance; and
- Upper quartile total compensation for sustained upper quartile company performance;
- Recognize the cyclical nature of Deere sequipment businesses and the need to manage value throughout the business cycle;
- Provide significant opportunity and incentives for Named Executives to be long-term stockholders of Deere;

30

- To the extent practicable, structure Deere\(\)s compensation programs to meet the tax deductibility criteria in the U.S. Internal Revenue Code (\(\)IRC\(\)); and
- Structure Deere\(\)s compensation programs to be regarded positively by Deere\(\)s stockholders and employees.

As explained in detail below, the award range and ultimate value realized from each of the incentive components of compensation is tied to Deere performance through association with an operating metric or as a function of the stock price. Deere has chosen the selected metrics to align employee compensation, including compensation for the Named Executives, to Deere strategy. This alignment is further accomplished by keeping the metrics simple, transparent and consistently communicated from year to year. As an example, SVA, for Deere and for each segment, has been published in the annual report every year since 2002 in the section following the Chairman sletter. In accordance with this compensation philosophy, compensation levels are determined by the Committee after review and consideration of peer group data provided by Hewitt Associates LLC (Compensation Consultant), the Committee compensation consultant. See the Total Direct Compensation and Review and Approval of Total Direct Compensation sections below for an overview of compensation delivery for fiscal 2008.

Although the required focus of the CD&A is compensation for Named Executives, the compensation programs discussed below apply in many cases to larger groups of employees than the Named Executives as described under the Short-Term Incentive ($\square STI \square$), Mid-Term Incentive ($\square MTI \square$) and Long-Term Incentive ($\square LTI \square$) sections below.

Compensation Committee

The Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving corporate goals and objectives relevant to compensation for the majority of salaried employees, evaluating the Named Executives[] performance in relation to these goals and evaluating and approving compensation of the Named Executives. See the []Committees[] section of the proxy statement for a detailed listing of Committee responsibilities and members. The Committee does not delegate any responsibilities related to the compensation of Named Executives. The Committee exercises its independent judgment when approving executive compensation. No member of the Committee is a former or current officer of Deere or any of its subsidiaries.

The Committee periodically reviews compensation delivery to ensure its alignment with Deere s business strategy and performance, market practices and the interest of employees and stockholders. In addition, the Committee periodically reviews market practices for all elements of executive compensation and approves necessary adjustments to remain competitive.

The Corporate Governance Committee of the Board directs an evaluation process of the Chief Executive Officer ([CEO[]). At the Board meeting in August each year, the full Board (in executive session without the CEO present) evaluates the CEO[]s performance. The Committee considers the Board[]s evaluation when providing recommendations to the Board for the CEO[]s compensation. Beginning in fiscal 2009, the Committee[]s recommendations for the CEO[]s compensation are presented to and approved by the independent members of the Board. The CEO does not play a role in and is not present during discussions regarding his own compensation.

The CEO is present for and plays a significant role in setting the compensation for the other Named Executives. The CEO presents an evaluation of each Named Executives individual performance. The CEO also provides his recommendations for changes to the Named Executives base salaries and LTI awards. The Committee has the discretion to accept, reject or modify the CEOs recommendations. The other Named Executives are not present during these discussions.

31

Compensation Committee Consultant

The Compensation Consultant periodically meets independently with the Chairman of the Committee to discuss compensation matters. In addition, the Compensation Consultant regularly participates in executive sessions with the Committee (without any Deere personnel present) to discuss compensation matters.

Hewitt Associates LLC provides other actuarial and human resource consulting services for Deere, but the Committee believes this does not compromise the Compensation Consultant□s ability to provide an independent perspective on executive compensation.

Peer Group and Market Data

To ensure total compensation for Named Executives is aligned to the market, based on information provided by the Compensation Consultant, Deere benchmarked compensation and performance against the following peer group for fiscal 2008.

3M Company Alcoa Inc.

Caterpillar Inc.
Cummins Inc.

Eaton Corporation

Eaton Corporation
Emerson Electric Company

General Dynamics Corporation

The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company

Honeywell International Inc. Illinois Tool Works Inc.

Ingersoll-Rand Company Limited

Johnson Controls Inc.

Lockheed Martin Corporation Northrop Grumman Corporation

PACCAR Inc.

Parker Hannifin Corporation

PPG Industries Inc. Raytheon Company

Textron Inc.

TRW Automotive Holdings Corporation

United Technologies Corporation

Whirlpool Corporation Xerox Corporation

These companies are similar to Deere in sales volume, products, services, market capitalization and/or global presence. Compensation paid by the peer group is representative of the compensation Deere believes is required to attract, retain and motivate executive talent. The list of companies has not significantly changed in recent years and provides a consistent measure for comparing compensation. The Committee periodically reviews and

considers the peer group to confirm that it continues to be an appropriate benchmark for the Named Executives compensation and company performance. During fiscal 2008, the Committee determined that due to TRW Automotive Holdings Corporation significantly lower market capitalization, it will no longer be included as part of the Deere peer group after fiscal 2008.

All references to peer group data throughout the CD&A refer to information provided to the Committee by the Compensation Consultant.

Elements of Executive Compensation

Total direct compensation for Deere s Named Executives is a mix of cash and equity awards. Base salary, STI and MTI awards are delivered in cash. Long-term incentives consist of equity awards including RSUs and stock options. Indirect compensation includes perquisites, retirement benefits, deferred compensation and post-employment benefits.

32

Each component of direct and indirect compensation and selected benefits is summarized in the table below:

			Where Reported in
Component	Purpose	Characteristics	Accompanying Tables
Base Salary	Reward for level of	Fixed cash component targeted a	
	responsibility,	Deere s peer group median. Base	
	experience and	salary can vary from market due	column [Salary[]
	sustained individual	to individual performance,	
	performance	experience, time in position and	
		internal equity considerations.	
Discretionary Bonus	To recognize	A cash award that may not	Not applicable in fiscal 2008
Awards		exceed 20% of base salary, except	t
	achievement	in unusual circumstances. No	
		discretionary bonuses were	
-		awarded in fiscal 2008.	
Short-Term Incentive		A target STI award is designed to	
$(\square STI \square)$		provide median annual cash	Compensation Table under the
	profitability through	compensation when combined	column [Non-Equity Incentive
		with base salary compared with	Plan Compensation ☐ and Fiscal
	and asset	Deere∏s peer group.	2008 Grants of Plan-Based
	management during		Awards under the column
	the fiscal year		☐Estimated Future Payouts Under
-			Non-Equity Plan Awards□
Mid-Term Incentive	Reward for the	Cash portion of long-term	Fiscal 2008 Summary
([MTI[])	achievement of	compensation. A target MTI	Compensation Table under the
	sustained profitable	award is designed to provide	column [Non-Equity Incentive
	growth over a	upper quartile compensation in	Plan Compensation ☐ and Fiscal
		combination with base salary,	2008 Grants of Plan-Based
	period	above target STI and target LTI	Awards under the column
		awards compared with Deere∏s	Estimated Future Payouts Under
		peer group.	Non-Equity Plan Awards□
Long-Term Incentive	Reward for the	Equity-based portion of long-term	
$(\Box LTI\Box)$	creation of	compensation. A target LTI award	
	shareholder value as	in combination with base salary	column □Stock Awards□ and
	reflected by Deere□s	and a target STI award are	□Option Awards□; Fiscal 2008
	stock price	designed to provide median	Grants of Plan-Based Awards
		compensation compared with	under the column ☐Grant Date
		Deere s peer group. Award is	Fair Value of Stock and Option
		delivered through a combination	Awards□; Outstanding Equity
		of RSUs and stock options.	Awards at Fiscal 2008 Year-End;
		Ultimate value of award depends	
		on Deere∏s stock price.	and Stock Vested; Fiscal 2008
			Deferred Compensation Table in

			the row □Deferred RSUs□
Perquisites	Provide Deere executives with selected benefits commensurate with those provided to executives at Deere speer group companies	to a select group of employees.	
		33	

			Where Reported in
Component	Purpose	Characteristics	Accompanying Tables
Retirement Benefits	Provide an	A defined benefit pension plan	Fiscal 2008 Summary
	appropriate level of	plus a 401(k) plan (John Deere	Compensation Table under the
	replacement income	Savings and Investment Plan	columns □Change in Pension
	upon retirement	([SIP])). Deere $[s]$ matches to the	SMalue[] and []All Other
		are based on the applicable	Compensation□; Fiscal 2008
		pension option (traditional versus	Pension Benefits Table
		contemporary) and Deere∏s	
		performance.	
Deferred	Allows executives to	Employees can elect to defer base	eAccumulated amounts deferred
Compensation		nsalary, STI or MTI into the	are reported in the Fiscal 2008
Benefits	a more tax-efficient	Voluntary Deferred Compensation	
	basis	Plan. Employees participating in	
		the contemporary pension option	
		can defer employee contributions	
		and receive matching employer	Compensation Table under the
		contributions under the Defined	column [Nonqualified Deferred
		Contribution Restoration Plan.	Compensation Earnings.□
		Also includes deferred RSUs.	
Potential Payments		Contingent in nature. Most	Fiscal 2008 Potential Payments
upon Change in		elements are payable only if a	upon Change in Control
Control	interest of	Named Executive s employment	
	stockholders	terminated as specified under the	9
		change in control provisions of	
		various plans.	
Other Potential	Lists potential	Contingent in nature. Amounts	Fiscal 2008 Potential Payments
Post-Employment	payments under the	are payable only if a Named	upon Termination of
Payments	scenarios of death,	Executive s employment is	Employment Other than
	disability, retirement,	terminated as specified under the	Following a Change in Control
	termination without	arrangements of various plans.	
	cause or for cause,		
	and voluntary		
	separation		

Direct Compensation Elements

Following is additional information about each direct compensation element including discussion of performance metrics, where applicable:

Base Salary

In determining salary levels for each of Deere \subseteq S Named Executives, the Committee takes into consideration factors such as fulfillment of job responsibilities, the financial and operational performance of the activities directed by each Named Executive, the financial performance of Deere relative to Deere \subseteq s peer group companies, experience, time in position, internal equity considerations, and potential. Each Named Executive \subseteq s current salary as compared to the salary range and the median salary practices of Deere \subseteq s peer group is also considered.

In November 2007, the Committee approved a base salary increase of 10% for the CEO. The Committee also approved increases ranging from 5-8% for the other Named Executives. These increases aligned the other Named Executives \Box base salaries with the market median for similar positions, except for the Chief Financial Officer (\Box CFO \Box). The CFO \Box s base salary is below the market median due to his short time in the position.

34

Short-Term Incentive (□STI□)

These factors are used to calculate the amount of the STI award paid to the Named Executives:

- Salary;
- Target award as described below under □Approval of STI Target Awards□;
- Deere s actual performance as a percent of target for the current fiscal year; and
- Operating Return on Operating Assets (☐OROA☐) and Return on Equity (☐ROE☐) results as defined below under ☐Performance Metrics for STI.☐

The STI Plan is periodically approved by Deere stockholders and was last approved at the February 2005 annual meeting.

Performance Metrics for STI

OROA is the performance metric used by Deere s Equipment Operations. Deere is primarily a manufacturing company with high investment in fixed assets, such as buildings and machinery, and significant expenses with longer term payoffs, such as research and development. Targeted OROA performance for each Equipment Operation changes according to the actual sales volume.

The line in the above graph is a representation of how Deere so operating leverage functions in a given business. For Deere, operating leverage means:

- When sales volumes and capacity utilization are low, it is more difficult to cover fixed costs and achieve high asset turnover; therefore, OROA performance goals are lower; and
- When sales volumes and capacity utilization are high, it is easier to cover fixed costs and achieve high asset turnover; therefore, OROA performance goals are higher.

By adjusting OROA performance goals as sales volumes change, Deere believes the level of difficulty in attaining targeted performance will be comparable for a range of sales volumes and capacity utilization. To be successful as market conditions change, Deere must strategically position the business by encouraging sound employee decisions regarding investment of capital and other asset utilization. This model encourages management to make the necessary structural changes to the business such as capacity planning, margin enhancements and asset turnover for a given level of volumes. Using OROA aligns this strategy to employee decisions that affect this component of variable pay.

At the beginning of fiscal 2008, the Committee approved the following OROA goals at different sales volume levels for the Equipment Operations:

	Minimum	Target	Maximum
OROA Goals at Low Volume	4%	8%	12%
OROA Goals at Mid-Volume	8%	12%	20%
OROA Goals at High Volume	12%	20%	28%

35

These OROA goals are the same as those approved by the Committee for fiscal 2007.

ROE is the performance metric for Deere S Financial Services operation. The Financial Services operation has different cash flow risk characteristics and operates with significantly different debt-to-equity leverage than the Equipment Operations. ROE goals for the Financial Services operation are adjusted for the actual mix of business subsidized by Deere Equipment Operations as well as for the business not subsidized. ROE goals are higher for non-subsidized business. The Committee approved the following ROE goals at the beginning of fiscal 2008:

Minimum	Target	Maximum
12.34%	13.28%	14.22%

The OROA and ROE calculations can be summarized as follows:

OROA for the Equipment Operations:

Operating profit (after provisions for STI and MTI awards and hourly profit sharing)

- + Provisions for STI awards
- + Provisions for MTI awards
- + Provisions for hourly profit sharing
- = Adjusted operating profit

OROA = Adjusted operating profit ÷ Average identifiable assets with inventories at standard cost and significant goodwill phased in over sixty months

ROE for the Financial Services:

Net income (after taxes and provisions for STI and MTI awards)

- + Provisions for MTI awards (net of income taxes)
- = Adjusted net income

 $ROE = Adjusted net income \div Average equity with equity related to significant goodwill phased in over sixty months$

Any significant goodwill from acquisitions is phased into average assets or average equity evenly over a sixty-month period. This policy encourages investments in sound acquisitions that may include goodwill, while still requiring effective integration and management of new businesses in a timely manner.

For the Named Executives, a corporate composite weighting is used to calculate STI. The corporate composite weighting consists of:

40% Agricultural Equipment Operations OROA;

20% Construction & Forestry Operations OROA;

20% Commercial & Consumer Equipment Operations OROA; and

20% Financial Services ROE.

For fiscal 2009, the OROA and ROE goals approved by the Committee in December 2008 remain unchanged from the fiscal 2008 goals set forth above. The definition of OROA for the Equipment Operations, however, has been revised. Beginning in fiscal 2009, the provisions for STI awards and hourly profit sharing will no longer be added back to operating profit to arrive at adjusted operating profit when calculating OROA for STI bonus purposes. This change requires that the cost of STI and the hourly profit sharing be covered prior to payment of an STI award.

36

Approval of STI Rates

After review and consideration of Deere speer group data for target cash bonuses, the Committee approves target STI rates as a percent of base salary for Named Executives at the beginning of the fiscal year. In November 2007, the Committee approved STI rates for fiscal 2008 as follows:

STI Award Rates: Fiscal 2		Fiscal 2008	08	
Performance Level	Minimum	Target	Maximum	
CEO	62.5%	125.0%	250.0%	
Other Named Executives	42.5%	85.0%	170.0%	

The above rates represent the following increases at target from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008: 110% to 125% for the CEO, and 70% to 85% for the other Named Executives. Over the past several years, Deere\[\] s peer group median annual cash compensation (which includes base salary and STI) has increased, resulting in below median competitive pay for the Named Executives. The Committee approved increases to these STI rates to align the Named Executives\[\] annual cash compensation with the median of Deere\[\] s peer group. This is consistent with Deere\[\] s compensation philosophy as outlined above. For more information on the range of STI awards approved for fiscal 2008, see the Executive Compensation table - Fiscal 2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards and footnote (2) to the table.

Fiscal 2008 Performance Results for STI

The chart below details:

- the goals that were necessary to achieve maximum STI payout based on the actual sales volumes (OROA) and the actual mix of business (ROE) utilizing the STI performance metrics approved by the Committee; and
- the actual OROA and ROE performance achieved and calculated in accordance with the STI plan.

	Goal to Achieve	Fiscal 2008	Actual Performance
Fiscal 2008 Performance Results For STI:	Maximum Payout	Performance Results	as % of Target
Agricultural Equipment Operations OROA	28.00%	42.12%	200.00%
Construction & Forestry Operations OROA	15.60%	21.59%	200.00%
Commercial & Consumer Equipment			
Operations OROA	15.60%	16.20%	200.00%
Financial Services ROE	14.22%	14.47%	200.00%

For fiscal 2008, actual sales volumes were above the mid-level volume collectively for the Equipment Operations.

The dollar amounts of the STI awards paid to Named Executives are calculated as follows:

Base salary for the fiscal year

- x STI target bonus rates
- x Actual performance as a percent of target (up to 200%)
- = STI award amount

STI awards paid to Named Executives are detailed in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table under footnote (4).

The STI plan and the results for fiscal 2008 described above are also used to determine the STI award paid to most salaried employees worldwide. For fiscal 2008, STI awards paid to the Named Executives were about 2% of the total amount of STI awards paid to approximately 27,400 eligible salaried employees.

37

Long-Term Compensation

Long-term compensation consists of a combination of MTI and LTI. MTI is paid in cash and is considered part of long-term compensation because each performance period encompasses four years. LTI is awarded using RSUs and stock options.

Mid-Term Incentive (☐MTI☐)

The following factors are used to calculate the amount of the MTI award paid to the Named Executives:

- Median of actual salaries for the salary grade;
- Target award as described below under [Approval of MTI Target Awards];
- Shareholder Value Added ([SVA]) results as defined below under [Performance Metrics for MTI]; and
- Number of eligible employees *
- * Participation in MTI plan includes management level employees worldwide numbering about 6,900 as of fiscal 2008; therefore, the amount of each individual MTI award is determined, in part, by the number of eligible employees in the pool.

The MTI Plan is periodically approved by Deere stockholders and was last approved at the February 2008 annual meeting.

Performance Metrics for MTI

In 2003, the Committee established SVA as the MTI performance metric to determine Deere success in delivering sustained growth in economic profitability. SVA was selected as the MTI performance metric because the Committee believes that Deere should: (a) earn, at a minimum, its weighted average cost of capital each year; (b) ensure investments in capital and research and development earn their cost of capital; and (c) ensure acquisitions do not dissipate shareholder value. Deere believes that sustained growth can be accomplished only through a combination of revenue growth and high returns on invested capital. Because MTI is based on enterprise-wide SVA, MTI facilitates teamwork across Deere business units.

SVA calculations for the Equipment Operations and Financial Services can be summarized as follows:

SVA of Equipment Operations:

Operating profit (after provision for MTI awards)

- + Provisions for MTI awards
- Estimated cost of assets ((average identifiable assets with inventories at standard cost) x 12% cost of capital)
- = SVA of Equipment Operations

SVA of Financial Services:

Net income divided by after-tax earnings rate of 65%

- + Provisions for MTI awards
- +/- Allowance for credit losses
- Estimated cost of equity ((average equity plus average allowance for credit losses) x approximately 18%)
 - = SVA of Financial Services

SVA of Equipment Operations + SVA of Financial Services = Deere SVA

38

The Committee continues to evaluate and test various operating performance metrics to determine the strongest correlation over time with shareholder value creation. The Committee believes SVA contains significant sustained performance incentives, has a proven correlation to Deere stotal shareholder return and has aligned employee performance with Deere sustained believes strategy over the past five years.

Each year, the Committee establishes MTI performance periods consisting of four consecutive fiscal years. Deere is engaged in a number of historically cyclical businesses. The four-year performance period approach emphasizes and rewards consistent, sustained operating performance. Since MTI was approved in 2003, two phase-in performance periods were completed during fiscal 2004 and 2005, and four-year performance periods were completed during fiscal years 2006 through 2008. Starting with the completion of the first full four-year performance period in fiscal 2006, the Committee has conducted annual reviews of the target and maximum SVA cap and adjusted these measures of SVA to align with Deere strategies for the performance period that begins in the next fiscal year. The chart below details the target and maximum SVA goals for each of the performance periods that include fiscal 2008 and the goals approved for the four-year performance period beginning in fiscal

2009.

	Fiscal 2005	Fiscal 2006	Fiscal 2007	Fiscal 2008	Fiscal 2009
	through	through	through	through	through
Four-Year Performance Periods	Fiscal 2008	Fiscal 2009	Fiscal 2010*	Fiscal 2011*	Fiscal 2012*
Target SVA	\$1.5 billion	\$1.5 billion	\$2.0 billion	\$2.075 billion	\$2.85 billion
Maximum SVA Cap	\$3.0 billion	\$3.0 billion	\$4.0 billion	\$4.15 billion	\$5.7 billion
% of SVA Shared	4.7%	4.7%	4.0%	4.0%	4.0%
MTI Payout to all Plan					
Participants at Target	\$70.5 million	\$70.5 million	\$80 million	\$83 million	\$114 million
Payable in	Dec 2008	Dec 2009	Dec 2010	Dec 2011	Dec 2012
Approved by Committee	Nov 2004	Nov 2005	Nov 2006	Nov 2007	Dec 2008

^{*} For the four-year performance periods ending in fiscal 2010 and beyond, any significant goodwill from acquisitions will be phased into average assets or average equity evenly over a sixty-month period. This policy encourages investments in sound acquisitions that may include goodwill, while still requiring effective integration and management of new businesses in a timely manner.

If performance criteria are met, MTI plan participants share in a percentage of four-year accumulated SVA (see chart above), which results in a cash payout. The payout amount for each employee is calculated using the MTI award rates below, but may be less depending on the number of eligible employees in the pool. Any individual MTI award cannot exceed the maximum approved by the Committee.

Inherent in the MTI plan is a lagging, four-year impact of SVA. Whether positive or negative, SVA results for a given year become part of the MTI award calculation for that year and the next three years. Negative SVA in a given year is part of the calculation for that year and the next three years and can offset positive SVA earned in a prior or future year. Thus, MTI plan payouts made in a weak-performance year, following several strong-performance years, will be higher than the financial results for a weak-performance year alone would justify. The opposite is also true: MTI plan payouts in a strong-performance year, following a number of weak-performance years, will be lower than the financial results that the strong-performance year alone would justify.

39

Approval of MTI Rates

After review and consideration of upper quartile compensation data of Deere speer group, the Committee approves target MTI rates as a percent of salary at the beginning of the last fiscal year of the four-year performance period. In November 2007, the Committee approved the following MTI award rates for the four-year performance period ending October 31, 2008.

MTI Award Rates:	Fiscal 2008					
	Minimum *	Target	Maximum			
CEO	\$1,100	160%	320%			
Other Named Executives	\$400	123%	246%			

^{*} A minimum MTI award (defined in terms of actual dollars rather than as a percentage of salary) will not be paid unless accumulated SVA exceeds \$1 million for a four-year performance period.

For details of the range of MTI awards approved for the performance period beginning in fiscal 2008, see the Executive Compensation table - Fiscal 2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards and footnote (2) to the table.

Fiscal 2008 Performance Results for MTI

Deere SVA, calculated in accordance with the MTI performance metrics as described above, for the four-year performance period ending October 31, 2008, is as follows:

Deere Enterprise SVA Accumulated SVA for Performance Period = \$5,494

* Amounts reported for 2006 and 2007 vary slightly from what was reported in last year s proxy. The amount reported last year for 2006 was \$1,081 and the amount reported for 2007 was \$1,449. The difference is due to elimination of the phase-in of goodwill for these fiscal years. The phase-in of goodwill is first applicable for the performance period ending in fiscal 2010.

For the four-year performance period ending October 31, 2008, the accumulated SVA, calculated in accordance with the MTI plan as described above, exceeded the \$3 billion cap, resulting in a maximum MTI award. MTI awards paid to Named Executives are detailed in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table under footnote (4). For fiscal 2008, MTI awards paid to the Named Executives were equal to approximately 5% of the MTI payout to all eligible employees.

In the eight years preceding the implementation of MTI, accumulated SVA, as reported, was negative \$1.4 billion as compared to accumulated positive SVA of \$5.9 billion since 2003. Deere sadoption of the SVA model was an important factor in this significant SVA improvement.

40

Long-Term Incentive (□**LTI**□**)**

The purpose of LTI is to reward Named Executives for the creation of sustained shareholder value, encourage ownership of Deere stock, foster teamwork and retain and motivate high-caliber executives. Deere believes LTI aligns the interests of the Named Executives and stockholders.

LTI awards consist of annual grants of market-priced stock options and RSUs under the John Deere Omnibus Equity and Incentive Plan ([Omnibus Plan[]). The Omnibus Plan is periodically approved by Deere stockholders. The last such approval occurred at the February 2006 annual meeting.

LTI grants to Named Executives are based on the following criteria established by the Committee: level of responsibility, base salary, individual performance, current market practice, the target award based on peer group data and the number of shares available under the Omnibus Plan. The number of options or RSUs previously granted to or held by a Named Executive is not a factor in determining individual grants. Past awards were granted based on performance in prior years. As a result, potential accumulated wealth is not viewed as relevant in arriving at the current year LTI award.

Approval of LTI Target Awards

At the beginning of the fiscal year, after review and consideration of Deere speer group data on target long-term incentives, the Committee approves a range of LTI factors that are a multiple of the base salaries for Named Executives. The following factors were approved for fiscal 2008:

L11 Award Factors:	FISCAI 2008					
	Minimum	Target	Maximum			
CEO	12.75x	17.375x	22x			
Other Named Executives	6x	8.5x	11x			

Ei---1 2000

The Committee determines LTI awards at the first Committee meeting at the beginning of the fiscal year. See footnote (3) to Fiscal 2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards table for LTI factors used to calculate the number of RSUs and options awarded to each individual Named Executive during fiscal 2008. The Committee has the discretion to increase or decrease a target LTI award within the approved range to distinguish an individual selvel of performance for the prior fiscal year, to deliver a particular LTI value, or to reflect other adjustments as the Committee feels necessary. As footnote (3) demonstrates, in some circumstances, the Committee exercised this discretion to modify the target award for individual performance. It is important to note, however, as described in the [Deere Aspirations and Strategy] section at the beginning of the CD&A, a primary part of Deere [s

strategy is aligned high-performance teamwork. A substantial portion of the evaluation of individual performance is a careful analysis of each Named Executive is significant collaboration and exceptional contribution to the success of a high performing team.

After review and consideration of the peer group data, the Committee also approved the LTI award value to be delivered as approximately 50% in stock options and approximately 50% in RSUs, using a conversion ratio of options to RSUs of 3 to 1. The Committee believes that these award factors will deliver LTI value that is aligned with Deere speer group. Using these factors and the grant price, the number of RSUs and options delivered is determined. See Fiscal 2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards and footnotes (3) and (4) to the table for more information on LTI awards delivered as well as terms of these awards. The accounting expense recognized during fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007 related to the LTI awards for Named Executives is detailed in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table under footnotes (2) and (3).

For fiscal 2008, the number of RSUs granted to Named Executives represented 51% of all RSUs granted to eligible salaried employees and the number of stock options granted to Named Executives represented 12% of stock options granted to eligible salaried employees. These proportions are consistent with Deere the philosophy that as Named Executives assume more responsibility, a larger portion of their incentive compensation should be focused on longer-term awards.

41

LTI Grant Practices

As has been the practice for more than 15 years, the Committee authorizes the annual LTI awards for all eligible employees on a single date each year. The grant date is seven calendar days after the first Board meeting of the fiscal year. This timing allows for stock price stabilization after the release of year-end financial results and Board meeting announcements. The grant price for LTI awards is the average of the high and low Deere common stock price on the grant date as reported on the NYSE. Deere has used the average grant price methodology for more than 30 years. This grant price is also used to determine the number of RSUs and stock options to be granted.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Stock ownership guidelines apply to Named Executives to encourage the retention of stock acquired through Deere s various equity incentive plans. These guidelines are based on a multiple of each Named Executive s base salary. The guidelines are five times base salary for the CEO and 3.5 times base salary for the other Named Executives. RSUs and any common stock held personally by the Named Executive are included in determining whether a Named Executive has achieved the applicable ownership guideline. Stock options are not included in calculating whether the guidelines have been met. Once the guideline is achieved by the Named Executive, the number of shares held at that time becomes the fixed stock ownership requirement for the Named Executive for three years, even if base salary increases. Each of the Named Executives has achieved stockholdings in excess of the applicable multiple.

Total Direct Compensation

Review and Approval of Total Direct Compensation

The Committee believes the pay elements described above are consistent with Deere\s compensation philosophy of paying for performance, supporting business strategies and paying competitively. Each pay element is designed to complement the other and reward the achievement of short-term and long-term objectives. After review and consideration of Deere\s peer group data, the Committee reviews the combination of these elements when establishing target compensation. The Committee intends that the combination of base salary, target STI, and target LTI awards will result in compensation at market median. If, in addition, the MTI target award is met, the Named Executives will receive upper quartile compensation as compared to Deere\s peer group. The Committee has evaluated the performance metrics associated with STI and MTI. The Committee believes that the maximum achievement of these performance metrics will represent upper quartile company performance as compared to Deere\s peer group. Therefore, the Committee and management believe that upper quartile compensation for the Named Executives is in line with Deere\s performance.

Direct compensation is the focus of the Committee sannual review of compensation for the Named Executives. The following table summarizes the direct compensation elements awarded to Named Executives in fiscal 2008 using (a) the full grant date value for RSUs awarded in 2008; and (b) the full binomial value for stock options

awards in 2008. Inclusion of the table is not intended to replace the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table, but rather to demonstrate how the Committee views the compensation awarded to Named Executives during the year and at the time equity awards are granted. Market data for most of the companies in Deere speer group is available using this methodology.

42

	Fiscal		Stock	Option	Non-Equity Incentive Plan	Total Direct
Name	Year	Salary	Awards	Awards	Compensation	Compensation
Robert W. Lane	2008	\$1,435,545	\$3,807,980	\$3,588,470	\$6,930,421	\$15,762,416
	2007	\$1,306,280	\$3,505,059	\$3,063,858	\$6,393,070	\$14,268,267
Michael J. Mack, Jr.	2008	\$ 543,367	\$ 722,018	\$ 680,425	\$1,930,241	\$ 3,876,051
	2007	\$ 515,646	\$ 570,922	\$ 499,048	\$1,834,698	\$ 3,420,314
Samuel R. Allen	2008	\$ 578,205	\$ 852,938	\$ 803,743	\$2,006,962	\$ 4,241,848
	2007	\$ 546,521	\$ 783,385	\$ 684,820	\$1,877,143	\$ 3,891,869
David C. Everitt	2008	\$ 590,115	\$ 861,288	\$ 811,639	\$ 2,008,179	\$ 4,271,221
	2007	\$ 552,299	\$ 777,096	\$ 679,294	\$1,885,089	\$ 3,893,778
James A. Israel*	2008	\$ 438,950	\$ 594,561	\$ 560,288	\$1,770,228	\$ 3,364,027

* Fiscal year 2008 is the first year that Mr. Israel met the criteria for inclusion in the executive compensation section of the proxy statement. Therefore, Mr. Israel[]s data for fiscal 2008 is the only data included.

Committee actions for each direct element of pay resulted in total direct compensation:

- slightly above the 75th percentile of Deere speer group for the CEO;
- slightly below the 75th percentile of Deere speer group for the CFO (due to time in position); and
- somewhat above, on average, the 75th percentile for the remaining Named Executives.

Although the Committee has the authority to decrease or eliminate the STI and/or MTI awards, the Committee has not done so for fiscal 2008. The Committee recognizes individual fulfillment of duties through adjustments to base salary and awarding LTI within the approved ranges discussed above. The Committee reviews total direct compensation for each Named Executive and compares this compensation to the market position data of Deere peer group. This market position data takes into account the level of responsibility (including the level of sales volume) for the Named Executive soperations.

Total direct compensation for the CEO is higher than other Named Executives due to the CEO\s breadth of executive and operating responsibilities for the entire global enterprise and is supported by a comparison to Deere\s peer group. Deere has a practice of rotating individuals among the executive officer positions. Thus, while the market data for each position is a factor in reviewing total direct compensation, individual fulfillment of duties, development, time in position, experience and internal equity among Named Executives, other than the CEO, are also considered. The Committee does not target CEO compensation as a certain multiple of the compensation of the other Named Executives. However, Deere\s ratio of CEO total direct compensation as compared to the other Named Executives\s\s\tau total direct compensation is generally comparable to the average ratio of similarly structured companies in Deere\s\s\tau s peer group.

During the December 2008 meeting, in connection with the review and approval of total direct compensation, the Committee discussed the current negative economic conditions affecting some of Deere\subset businesses and Deere\subset stock price, which has declined recently in line with the stock performance of the S&P 500 Construction and Farm Machinery Index. As part of this review, the Committee noted that in fiscal 2008 Deere achieved its fifth consecutive year of record revenues and record net income. In addition, Deere met the maximum payout performance metrics for both the STI and MTI Plans for fiscal 2008 that were established in alignment with upper quartile performance at the beginning of the fiscal year.

The fiscal 2008 STI awards apply only to Deere□s performance in fiscal 2008, which was also a record OROA performance year. By contrast, the MTI award paid for fiscal 2008 is calculated based on Deere□s cumulative SVA performance over the most recent four-year performance period, i.e.

43

fiscal years 2005 through 2008. Both the SVA earned during fiscal year 2008 and the cumulative SVA earned during the fiscal years 2005 through 2008 established new records. Moreover, as detailed in the foregoing section entitled [Mid-Term Incentive, each fiscal year performance is part of the MTI calculations for four consecutive performance periods. Fiscal 2008 performance will be included in the calculations for the three MTI performance periods ending in fiscal 2009, fiscal 2010, and fiscal 2011.

Based on these considerations, the Committee has determined that the fiscal 2008 STI award for Deere[s record performance in fiscal 2008 and the fiscal 2008 MTI award for Deere[s record performance over the four-year performance period from fiscal 2005 through fiscal 2008 are appropriate, despite current economic conditions.

Limitations on Deductibility of Compensation

Section 162(m) of the IRC generally limits to \$1 million the U.S. federal tax deductibility of compensation paid in one year to any employee. Performance-based compensation is not subject to the limits on deductibility of Section 162(m), provided such compensation meets certain requirements, including stockholder approval of material terms of compensation.

The Committee strives to provide Named Executives with compensation programs that will preserve the tax deductibility of compensation paid for Deere, to the extent reasonably practicable and to the extent consistent with Deere so other compensation objectives. The Committee believes, however, that stockholder interests are best served by not restricting the Committee sdiscretion and flexibility in structuring compensation programs, even though those programs may result in certain non-deductible compensation expenses.

Recoupment of Previously Paid Incentive Compensation

In November 2007, the Committee adopted the Executive Incentive Award Recoupment Policy ([Recoupment Policy]). The Recoupment Policy applies to the recoupment of incentive compensation paid to or deferred by certain executives (including the Named Executives) if certain conditions are met. This policy applies if the Named Executive engaged in misconduct that:

- contributed to the need for a restatement of all or a portion of Deere s financial statements filed with the SEC: or
- contributed to inaccurate operating metrics being used to calculate incentive compensation.

Under the Recoupment Policy, if either of the above scenarios apply, there must also be a determination that the Named Executive incentive compensation would have been lower if the misconduct had not occurred.

Indirect Compensation Elements

Following is additional information about each indirect compensation element:

Perquisites

Various perquisites are offered to Named Executives that Deere and the Committee believe are reasonable to remain competitive. These perquisites constitute a small percentage of total compensation. The Committee periodically reviews the perquisites offered. For more information on the perquisites provided and to whom they apply, see footnote (6) to the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table. In addition to the items listed in this table, Named Executives, as well as other selected employees, are also provided with the following perquisites at no incremental cost: indoor parking, monitoring of home security systems and access to Deere-sponsored skyboxes at local venues for personal use when not needed for business purposes. Installation and maintenance costs of home security systems are the responsibility of the employee.

44

Retirement Benefits

Pension Benefits

The Named Executives participate in the same range of pension benefits and are covered by the same plans

(with the exception of the Officer Option discussed under Pension Benefits) on the same plan terms provided to most qualifying U.S. salaried employees ([Salaried Plan]). Deere has the following two additional defined benefit plans:

- The Senior Supplementary Pension Benefit Plan (□Supplementary Plan□), in which employees who earn more than the limits imposed by the IRC are eligible to participate.
- The John Deere Supplemental Pension Benefit Plan ([Supplemental Plan[]) which is available to certain employees.

The defined benefit plans serve as important retention tools, are designed to provide a level of competitive replacement income upon retirement and also serve as an additional reward for long-term employment. The Supplementary and Supplemental Plans increase participant retirement benefits above amounts available under the Salaried Plan. For additional information, see the Fiscal 2008 Pension Benefits Table along with the accompanying narrative and footnotes.

John Deere Savings and Investment Plan

Deere offers a 401(k) plan that is a tax-qualified retirement savings plan, called the John Deere Savings and Investment Plan ([SIP]). The SIP is available to the majority of U.S. employees paid on the U.S. payroll system. Named Executives are eligible to participate in the SIP. Employee contributions to the SIP are made on a post-tax basis under the Roth 401(k) option and on a pre-tax basis for the other options. Participants who are under the traditional pension option (see [Pension Benefits] section below) can contribute up to 50% of their base salary to the SIP (excluding STI awards and subject to U.S. Internal Revenue Service ([IRS[]) limitations). Participants who are under the contemporary pension option can contribute up to 50% of their base salary to the SIP (including STI awards and subject to IRS limitations). SIP participants over age 50 may contribute up to an additional 25% of base salary (and STI if the contemporary option was selected) subject to IRS limitations for catch-up contributions. Deere also makes matching contributions on up to six percent of an employee[]s pay to participant SIP accounts. For both the traditional and contemporary match calculations, the fiscal year corporate composite OROA of the STI Plan (see the [Performance Metrics for STI[] section above) is used for determining the level of actual company match for the participating employee[]s SIP account for the following calendar year. For calendar 2008, the company match, reported under the []All Other Compensation[] column of the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table, was as follows (stated as a percent of base salary):

Traditional	Contemporary	Contemporary
1% 🛮 6%	First 2%	Next 4%
100%	300%	100%

Deferred Compensation Benefits

Compensation may be deferred as follows:

- The John Deere Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan is offered to certain executives, including Named Executives, by providing a longer-term sayings opportunity on a tax-efficient basis:
- The John Deere Defined Contribution Restoration Plan is a nonqualified savings plan intended to restore contributions to the SIP that are limited by the IRS contribution limits for certain employees as described later: and
- Deferred RSUs are units that have vested, but are either restricted by the holding period or deferred at the election of the Named Executive.

45

All deferred compensation benefits are offered to attract, retain and motivate employees and are commonly offered by companies with whom Deere competes for talent. See the [Nonqualified Deferred Compensation] section below for more details.

Potential Payments upon Change in Control and Other Potential Post-Employment Payments

Potential Payments upon Change in Control

Deere has had change in control agreements in place since 2000. In November 2007, the Board approved revisions to the change in control plan. The revisions included technical changes to comply with recent 409A regulations. In addition, the terms of the agreements were shortened from three years to two years but still allow

for automatic extension at the end of the two year period. The change in control agreements are extended to certain executives including the Named Executives in the event of a change in control and a qualifying termination (commonly referred to as a \[\]double trigger\[\]). After review and consideration of the peer group data, the benefits provided in the change in control agreements were approved by the Committee. For more information, see Fiscal 2008 Potential Payments upon Change in Control and corresponding tables. The Committee believes that change in control agreements serve the following purposes:

- Encourage executives to act in the best interests of stockholders in evaluating a transaction that, without a change in control arrangement, could be personally detrimental;
- Keep executives focused on running the business in the face of real or rumored transactions;
- Protect the value of Deere by retaining key talent in the face of corporate changes;
- Include restrictive covenants (such as non-compete provisions) to protect the value of Deere after a change in control; and
- Aid in the attraction and retention of these executives as a competitive practice.

Other Potential Post Employment Payments

Upon certain types of terminations of employment not related to a change in control, payments under various Deere policies and plans may be paid to Named Executives. These events and amounts are explained in the Fiscal 2008 Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment Other Than Following a Change in Control section below.

46

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors has reviewed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K and discussed it with the Company\[\]s management. Based on the Compensation Committee\[\]s review and discussions with management, the Compensation Committee recommends to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in Deere\[\]s proxy statement.

Arthur L. Kelly, Chair Crandall C. Bowles Vance D. Coffman Clayton M. Jones Antonio Madero B. Richard B. Myers David B. Speer

47

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION TABLES

Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table

Deere is required to include the CEO, CFO and the next three highest paid executives in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table. Fiscal 2008 is the first year that Mr. Israel met the criteria for inclusion in the Summary Compensation Table. Therefore Mr. Israel state for fiscal 2008 is the only data included.

Change in

						Pension Value and Nonqualified	
					Non-Equity	Deferred	
					Incentive Plan	Compensation	
		Salary	Stock Awards	Option Awards	Compensation	Earnings	Co
	Fiscal	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	
Name & Position	Year	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	
Robert W. Lane,	2008	\$ 1,435,545	\$ 3,933,231 (7)	\$ 3,676,338 (7)	\$ 6,930,421	\$ 5,625,577	
Chairman, President &	2007	\$ 1,306,280	\$ 5,134,780 (7)	\$ 4,181,359 (7)	\$ 6,393,070	\$ 3,106,847	
Chief Executive Officer							
Michael J. Mack, Jr.,	2008	\$ 543,367	\$ 578,688	\$ 525,045	\$ 1,930,241	\$ 57,187	
Senior Vice President	2007	\$ 515,646	\$ 452,041	\$ 418,310	\$ 1,834,698	\$ 99,629	
Chief Financial Officer							
Samuel R. Allen,	2008	\$ 578,205	\$ 1,674,702 (7)	\$ 1,512,588 (7)	\$ 2,006,962	\$ 225,881	
President, Worldwide	2007	\$ 546,521	\$ 821,824	\$ 660,914	\$ 1,877,143	\$ 270,349	
Construction & Forestry							
David C. Everitt,	2008	\$ 590,115	\$ 889,344 (7)	\$ 831,629 (7)	\$ 2,008,179	\$ 424,899	
President,	2007	\$ 552,299	\$ 1,135,859 (7)	\$ 930,154 (7)	\$ 1,885,089	\$ 373,182	
Agricultural Division							
James A. Israel,	2008	\$ 438,950	\$ 1,140,886 (7)	\$ 1,036,048 (7)	\$ 1,770,228	\$ 80,737	
President, Credit							

(1)

Includes amounts deferred by the Named Executive under the John Deere Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan. For salary amounts deferred in fiscal 2008, see amounts listed in the first column of the Fiscal 2008 Deferred Compensation Table corresponding with \square Deferred Plan. \square

(2)

Represents the amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to outstanding RSUs in accordance with FAS 123R. The assumptions made in valuing RSUs reported in this column are discussed in Note 24, [Stock Option and Restricted Stock Awards of Deere sconsolidated financial statements filed with the SEC on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008. See the Fiscal 2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards table for the full fair value of RSUs granted in 2008. RSUs are valued using the full value grant price as of the grant date and this value does not correspond to the actual value that will be realized by the Named Executives. The RSUs included in this table vest after three years. RSUs granted in fiscal 2004-2007 must be held for at least five years from the grant date before they are converted to Deere common stock. The RSUs granted in fiscal 2008 must be held until retirement or other permitted termination of employment. RSU grants are discussed in the [Long-Term Incentive] section of the CD&A under [Elements of Executive Compensation. ☐ Except as described in footnote (7) below, the compensation cost of RSUs is recognized on a straight-line basis over the three-year vesting period. In accordance with SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the potential impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions.

(3)

Represents the amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to outstanding option awards in accordance with FAS 123R. Deere uses a binomial lattice option pricing model to calculate option value and this value does not correspond to the actual value that may be realized by the Named Executives. Except as described in footnote (7) below, the compensation cost of the

Pension Value

stock options that vest is recognized on a straight-line basis over the 48

three-year vesting period. The assumptions made in valuing option awards reported in this column and a more detailed discussion of the binomial lattice option pricing model are described in Note 24, □Stock Option and Restricted Stock Awards□ of Deere□s consolidated financial statements filed with the SEC on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008. See the Fiscal 2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards table for the full fair value of options granted in 2008. Option grants are discussed in the □Long-Term Incentive□ section of the CD&A under □Elements of Executive Compensation.□

Non-equity incentive plan compensation includes cash awards under the STI plan and the MTI plan. See the CD&A under □Elements of Executive Compensation□ for a more detailed description of STI and MTI awards. Cash awards earned for the performance period ending in fiscal 2008 were paid to Named Executives on December 15, 2008, unless deferred under the Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan.

The following table shows the awards earned under the STI and MTI plans:

			STI (a) Actual		Target	MTI (b) Actual	
		Target	Performance		Award as %	Performance	
	Fiscal	Award as %	as % of	Award	of Median	as % of	Award
Name	Year	of Salary	Target	Amount	Salary	Target	Amount
Robert W. Lane	2008	125%	200%	\$ 3,588,863	160%	200%	\$ 3,341,558
	2007	110%	200%	\$ 2,873,816	160%	200%	\$ 3,519,254
Michael J. Mack, Jr.	2008	85%	200%	\$ 906,228	123%	200%	\$ 1,024,013
	2007	70%	200%	\$ 708,182	123%	200%	\$ 1,126,516
Samuel R. Allen	2008	85%	200%	\$ 982,949	123%	200%	\$ 1,024,013
	2007	70%	200%	\$ 750,627	123%	200%	\$ 1,126,516
David C. Everitt	2008	85%	200%	\$ 984,166	123%	200%	\$ 1,024,013
	2007	70%	200%	\$ 758,573	123%	200%	\$ 1,126,516
James A. Israel	2008	85%	200%	\$ 746,215	123%	200%	\$ 1,024,013

(a)

(4)

Based on actual Deere performance, as discussed in the CD&A under ☐Fiscal 2008 Performance Results for STI,☐ the Named Executives earned an STI award equal to 200% of their annual target bonus opportunity for fiscal 2008 (125% for Mr. Lane and 85% for the other Named Executives). An STI award equal to 200% of the annual target bonus opportunity was earned in fiscal 2007.

(b)

Based on actual Deere performance, as discussed in the CD&A under [Fiscal 2008 Performance Results for MTI,] the Named Executives earned an MTI award equal to 200% of the target opportunity. An MTI award equal to 200% of the annual target bonus opportunity was earned in fiscal 2007.

49

(5) The following table shows the change in pension value and above-market earnings on nonqualified deferred compensation during the fiscal year. The footnotes below describe how the amounts were calculated.

			Nonqualified Deferred	
		Change in	Compensation	
		Pension Value	Earnings	
Name	Fiscal Year	(a)	(b)	Total
Robert W. Lane	2008	\$5,547,750	\$ 77,827	\$5,625,577
	2007	\$2,984,816	\$ 122,031	\$3,106,847
Michael J. Mack, Jr.	2008	\$ 45,128	\$ 12,059	\$ 57,187
	2007	\$ 86,198	\$ 13,431	\$ 99,629
Samuel R. Allen	2008	\$ 202,133	\$ 23,748	\$ 225,881
	2007	\$ 242,969	\$ 27,380	\$ 270,349
David C. Everitt	2008	\$ 401,728	\$ 23,171	\$ 424,899
	2007	\$ 336,851	\$ 36,331	\$ 373,182
James A. Israel	2008	\$ 80,737	\$ □	\$ 80,737

(a)

Represents the change in the actuarial present value of each Named Executive accumulated benefit under all defined benefit plans from October 31, 2007, to October 31, 2008. The pension value calculations in the table above use the same assumptions as used in the U.S. pension plan valuations for financial reporting purposes. For more information on the assumptions, see footnote (4) under the Fiscal 2008 Pension Benefits Table.

(b)

Represents above-market earnings on compensation that is deferred by the Named Executives under Deere\[\]s nonqualified deferred compensation plans. Above-market earnings represent the difference between the interest rate used to calculate earnings under the plan (prime rate plus 2%) and 120% of the applicable federal long-term rate prescribed by the IRC. See the Fiscal 2008 Deferred Compensation Table for additional information.

(6) The following table provides details about each component of the ☐All Other Compensation☐ column in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table.

		Personal Use of					Company Contributions to Defined	
		Company	Financial	Medical	Misc		Contribution	
		Aircraft	Planning	Exams	Perquisites	Tax Gross Ups	Plans	Total
Name	Year	(a)	(b)	(c)	(d)	(e)	(f)	Comp
Robert W. Lane	2008	\$401,732	\$15,000	\$ 8,674	\$ 1,584	\$	\$ 15,500	\$ 4
	2007	\$324,825	\$15,000	\$10,154	\$ 9,900	\$ 5,707 (4)	\$ 15,500	\$3
Michael J. Mack, Jr.	2008	\$ 30,701	\$10,000	\$ 5,556	\$22,490	\$19,216 (1)	\$124,246	\$ 2
	2007	\$ 4,548	\$10,000	\$	\$ 8,868	\$ 9,108 (4)	\$103,792	\$ 2
Samuel R. Allen	2008	\$ 1,044	\$ 6,207	\$ 3,037	\$24,507	\$25,099 (1)	\$133,156	\$ 1
	2007	\$ 6,923	\$ 5,823	\$	\$ 8,323	\$ 9,419 (1), (4)	\$123,956	\$ 1
David C. Everitt	2008	\$	\$	\$ 3,433	\$30,593	\$22,626 (1)	\$ 15,500	\$
	2007	\$ 4,294	\$ 5,000	\$ 2,374	\$ 9,086	\$13,067 (1), (4)	\$ 15,500	\$
James A. Israel	2008	\$	\$10,000	\$	\$20,113	\$18,328 (1)	\$ 15,500	\$

(a) In August 2006, the Board voted to require the CEO to use Deere aircraft for all business and personal travel. Personal use by other Named Executives is minimal. Any personal travel by the Named Executives individually or accompanied by their family members on Deere aircraft must be approved by the CEO. Per IRS regulations, the Named Executives recognize imputed income on the

personal use at rates established by the IRS. For SEC purposes, the cost of personal use of Deere aircraft is calculated based on the incremental cost to Deere. To determine the incremental cost, Deere calculates the variable costs based on

50

	expenses such as on-board variable costs. Fixed costs	costs and trip-related maintenance on a per mile basis, plus any direct trip catering, landing/ramp fees, crew expenses and other miscellaneous which do not change based on usage, such as pilot salaries, depreciation ntenance not related to trips are excluded.							
(b)	behalf of the Named	This column contains amounts Deere paid for financial planning assistance on ehalf of the Named Executives. The CEO may receive up to \$15,000 of ssistance and the other Named Executives may receive up to \$10,000.							
(c)	This column contains Named Executives.	This column contains the amounts Deere paid for annual medical exams for Named Executives.							
(d)	Named Executive inc staff retreat which in board meeting in fisc of certain Named Ex	Miscellaneous perquisites include other personal benefits received by the Named Executive including company-provided car washes, participation in a staff retreat which included spouses in fiscal 2007, spouse attendance at a board meeting in fiscal 2008, and drive-by surveillance and response to alarms of certain Named Executive sresidences by Deeres Corporate Security Staff. Company-provided car washes have been discontinued for fiscal 2009.							
(e)	but applicable tax ru	ovided when expenses are incurred for business purposes, les result in imputed income to the employee. Tax gross executive may include:							
	(1)	Tax reimbursements on income imputed for spousal travel when required for business reasons;							
	(2)	Tax reimbursements associated with overseas assignments. Deere□s policy is that an employee will not incur excess taxes for an overseas assignment. Accordingly, the employee□s taxes are equalized to ensure that the employee does not incur additional out-of-pocket tax expense;							
	(3)	Tax reimbursement for income imputed to the employee on reimbursed moving expenses; and							
	(4)	Tax reimbursement on income imputed for staff retreats.							
(f)	(□SIP□) for all emplo Contribution Restora	utions to the John Deere Savings and Investment Plan yees. Deere also credits contributions to the Deere Defined tion Plan for all employees covered by the Contemporary							

contributed for all participating salaried employees.

Deere adopted FAS 123R in fiscal 2006 on a prospective basis. The current year sawards for Mr. Lane, Mr. Allen, Mr. Everitt and Mr. Israel were fully expensed for purposes of FAS 123R because they are eligible for retirement in fiscal 2008. This accounting treatment is required under FAS 123R for awards that are treated as vested at grant. Employees retain their awards upon retirement. Mr. Allen and Mr. Israel became eligible for retirement during fiscal 2008; therefore

Option under the tax-qualified pension plan. Mr. Allen and Mr. Mack are both covered by the Contemporary Option. For fiscal 2008, the amount contributed by Deere to the SIP for Named Executives is about 0.09% of the total amount

FAS 123R requires that the expensing of their stock awards and options granted in prior years be accelerated and fully expensed in the year they become retirement eligible. Mr. Lane and Mr. Everitt became eligible for retirement prior to fiscal 2007.

51

Fiscal 2008 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table provides additional information regarding fiscal 2008 grants of RSU and stock option awards under the Omnibus Plan, and the potential range of awards that were approved in fiscal 2008 under STI and MTI for payout in future years. The footnotes below detail the performance period covered by these awards. These awards are further described in the CD&A under \Box Elements of Executive Compensation. \Box

							All Other	All Other	
							Stock	Option	l
							Awards:	-	Exe
							Number	•	
							of Shares	Number of	or E
				Estimated I	Future Payouts	Under Non-	of	Securities	Pric
					-		Stock		Ont
				Equity	Incentive Plan (2)	Awaras	or Unite	Underlying Options	-
	Grant Date	Committee	Award	Threshold	(2) Target	Maximum	Units (#)	Options (#)	Awa (\$ /
Name	(1)	Action Date	Type_	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(3)	(#) (4)	(\$ / (!
Robert W. Lane	11/27/2007	11/27/2007	STI	\$ 897,216		\$3,588,863		4 (*)	"
Robert W. Luns	11/27/2007	11/27/2007	MTI	\$ 1,100				4 7	
	12/5/2007	11/27/2007	RSUs	Ψ 1,230	φ1,507,522	φυ,συ 1,συ 1	42,873	4 7	
	12/5/2007	11/27/2007	Options		7		TEICIC	128,619	\$88
			Totals	\$ 898,316	\$3,761,447	\$7,522,895	42,873	128,619	
Michael J. Mack, Jr.	11/27/2007	11/27/2007	STI	\$ 226,557					
1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-	11/27/2007	11/27/2007	MTI	\$ 400	•				ļ
	12/5/2007	11/27/2007	RSUs	**	т - ,	τ-, - ,	8,129		ļ
	12/5/2007	11/27/2007	Options				•	24,388	\$88
			Totals	\$ 226,957	\$1,055,902	\$2,111,804	8,129	24,388	
Samuel R. Allen	11/27/2007	11/27/2007	STI	\$ 245,737				<u> </u>	
	11/27/2007	11/27/2007	MTI	\$ 400					
	12/5/2007	11/27/2007	RSUs				9,603		
	12/5/2007	11/27/2007	Options				/	28,808	\$88
	_		Totals	\$ 246,137	\$1,094,262	\$2,188,525	9,603	28,808	
David C. Everitt	11/27/2007	11/27/2007	STI	\$ 246,041					ŀ
	11/27/2007	11/27/2007	MTI	\$ 400	\$ 602,788	\$1,205,576			ĺ
	12/5/2007	11/27/2007	RSUs				9,697		ĺ
	12/5/2007	11/27/2007	Options					29,091	\$88
			Totals	\$ 246,441		\$2,189,742		29,091	_
James A. Israel	11/27/2007	11/27/2007	STI	\$ 186,554				47	4
	11/27/2007	11/27/2007	MTI	\$ 400	\$ 602,788	\$1,205,576		47	4
	12/5/2007	11/27/2007	RSUs			4-11	6,694		4
	12/5/2007	11/27/2007	Options				/	20,082	\$88
			Totals	\$ 186,954	\$ 975,896	\$1,951,791	6,694	20,082	

(1)

For the non-equity incentive plan awards, the grant date is the date the Committee approved the range of the estimated potential future payouts for the performance periods noted under footnote (2) below. For equity awards, the grant date is seven calendar days after the

regularly scheduled Board meeting following the end of the fiscal year.

These columns show the range of potential payouts under the STI and MTI plans.

The performance period for STI in this table covers November 1, 2007, to October 31, 2008. For the range of awards approved by the Committee for fiscal 2008, see □Approval of STI Rates□ in the CD&A. For actual performance between minimum, target and maximum, the STI award earned is prorated on a straight-line basis.

The range of MTI awards is for the four-year performance period beginning fiscal 2008, which started on November 1, 2007, and will end on October 31, 2011. For the range of awards approved by the Committee for fiscal 2008, see Approval of MTI Rates in the CD&A. No awards will be paid unless Deere generates at least \$1 million of SVA for a performance period. The target MTI award will be earned if \$2,075 million of SVA is generated and the maximum

52

MTI award will be earned if \$4,150 million or more of SVA is generated during the performance period. The amounts in the table represent potential MTI awards assuming no change in the number of MTI participants and no change in the Named Executives salaries. The actual MTI awards will depend upon the following factors during the relevant performance period:

• Deere[]s actual performance;

(2)

- the actual number of participants sharing in the SVA allocated to the MTI participants for the relevant performance period;
- the median of the Named Executive salary grade as of September 30 in year three of the four-year performance period; and
- the MTI rates approved by the Committee.
- (3) Represents the number of RSUs granted in December 2007. RSUs will vest three years after the grant date, but must be held until retirement or other permitted termination of employment before they are settled in Deere common stock. The accounting expense recognized by Deere for these awards during fiscal 2008 is included in the [Stock Awards] column of the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table. Prior to settlement, each RSU entitles the individual to receive payments from Deere equal to any quarterly dividends that Deere pays on one share of its common stock. Dividend equivalent payments are paid in cash at the same time as dividends are paid on Deere scommon stock. The following table calculates the number of RSUs and stock options awarded:

	Robert W. Lane	Michael Mack, Jr.	Samuel R. Allen	David C. Everitt	James
Base Salary, as of 30 September 2007	\$ 1,314,996	\$ 509,700	\$ 538,704	\$ 543,996	\$ 4
x LTI Factor	17.375	8.5	9.5	9.5	
	\$ 22,848,056	\$4,332,450	\$5,117,688	\$5,167,962	\$3,5
÷ Grant Price	\$ 88.82	\$ 88.82	\$ 88.82	\$ 88.82	\$
Number of options/shares to be delivered	257,239	48,777	57,618	58,184	
					_
x Rate of RSUs to be delivered	50%	50%	50%	50%	
÷ Conversion Rate	3	3	3	3	
Number of RSUs delivered	42,873	8,129	9,603	9,697	
x Rate of options to be delivered	50%	50%	50%	50%	
Number of stock options to be delivered	128,619	24,388	28,808	29,091	

(4)

Represents the number of options granted during fiscal 2008 in December 2007. See footnote (3) above for calculation of the number of options awarded. These options vest in approximately three equal installments on the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date. The accounting expense recognized by Deere for these awards during fiscal 2008 is included in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table, under the column <code>Option</code> Awards.

(5)

The exercise price is the average of the high and low price of Deere common stock on the NYSE on the grant date.

(6)

Represents the full grant date fair value of RSUs and options granted to the Named Executives in fiscal 2008 valued under FAS 123R. Generally, the full value is the amount that Deere would expense in its financial statements over the award\[\]s vesting period. For RSUs, fair value is the market value of the underlying stock on the grant date (which is the same as the exercise price in column (5) for stock options). For options, the fair value on the grant date was \$27.90, which was calculated using the binomial lattice option pricing model. For additional information on the valuation assumptions, refer to Note 24, \[\] Stock Option and Restricted Stock Awards\[\] of Deere\[\] s consolidated financial statements filed with the SEC on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008. These amounts reflect Deere\[\] s accounting expense for these awards over the vesting period and do not correspond to the actual value that may be realized by the Named Executives.

53

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2008 Year-End

The following table itemizes outstanding options and RSUs held by the Named Executives as of October 31, 2008.

				Option Aw	ards			S
		Number of	Number of					Numb
		Securities	Securities	Total				of Shar
		Underlying	Underlying	Number of		Market		or Units
		Unexercised	Unexercised	Securities		Value		Stock T
		Options	Options	Underlying	Option	of Unexercised	Option	Have N
		Exercisable	Unexercisable	Unexercised	Exercise	Options	Expiration	Veste
		(#)	(#)	Options	Price	(\$)	Date	(#)
Name	Grant Date	(1)	(1)	(#)	(\$)	(2)	(3)	(4)
Robert W. Lane	10-Dec-03	190,512		190,512	\$30.82	\$ 1,474,563	10-Dec-13	
	8-Dec-04	320,000		320,000	\$34.69	\$ 1,240,000	8-Dec-14	
	7-Dec-05	201,067	99,033	300,100	\$34.44	\$ 1,236,412	7-Dec-15	100,
	6-Dec-06	73,906	143,466	217,372	\$48.38	\$	6-Dec-16	72,
	5-Dec-07		128,619	128,619	\$88.82	\$	5-Dec-17	42,
		785,485	371,118	1,156,603		\$ 3,950,975		215,
Michael J. Mack, Jr.	7-Dec-05	1	13,677	13,678	\$34.44	\$ 56,353	7-Dec-15	13,
	6-Dec-06	12,038	23,368	35,406	\$48.38	\$	6-Dec-16	11,
	5-Dec-07		24,388	24,388	\$88.82	\$	5-Dec-17	8,
		12,039	61,433	73,472		\$ 56,353		33,

Edgar Filing: DEERE & CO - Form DEF 14A

Samuel R. Allen	7-Dec-05	1	19,921	19,922	\$34.44	\$ 82,079	7-Dec-15				
	6-Dec-06	304	32,067	32,371	\$48.38	\$	6-Dec-16				
	5-Dec-07		28,808	28,808	\$88.82	\$	5-Dec-17				
		305	80,796	81,101		\$ 82,079					
David C. Everitt	7-Dec-05	1	20,309	20,310	\$34.44	\$ 83,677	7-Dec-15				
	6-Dec-06	1	31,809	31,810	\$48.38	\$ □	6-Dec-16				
	5-Dec-07		29,091	29,091	\$88.82	\$ □	5-Dec-17				
		2	81,209	81,211		\$ 83,677					
James A. Israel	7-Dec-05		12,948	12,948	\$34.44	\$ 53,346	7-Dec-15				
	6-Dec-06	11,396	22,124	33,520	\$48.38	\$	6-Dec-16				
	5-Dec-07		20,082	20,082	\$88.82	\$	5-Dec-17				
		11,396	55,154	66,550		\$ 53,346					
Options generally become vested and exercisable in approximately three equal installments on the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date.											
(2)											

Options expire ten years from the grant date.

RSUs generally vest three years from the grant date. RSUs granted in fiscal 2008 must be held until retirement or other permitted termination of employment before they are settled in Deere common stock. RSUs granted in fiscal years 2007 and 2006 must be held for at least five years from the grant date. RSUs that have vested, but have not been settled in Deere common stock are included on the Fiscal 2008 Deferred Compensation Table.

The amount shown represents the number of RSUs that have not vested multiplied by the closing price for Deere common stock on the NYSE on October 31, 2008, which was \$38.56.

Fiscal 2008 Option Exercises and Stock Vested

(3)

(4)

(5)

The following table provides information regarding option exercises and vesting of RSUs for each Named Executive during fiscal 2008. These options and stock awards were granted in prior fiscal years and are not related to performance in fiscal 2008.

	Option	Awards	Stock Awards				
	Number of		Number of				
	Shares	Value	Shares				
	Acquired on Exercise	Realized on Exercise	Acquired on Vesting	Value Realized on Vesting			
	(#)	(\$)	(#)	(\$)			
Name	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)			
Robert W. Lane	707,472	\$ 41,041,550	130,000	\$ 11,454,300			
Michael J. Mack, Jr.	39,560	\$2,008,371	9,528	\$ 839,512			
Samuel R. Allen	190,069	\$9,122,819	28,564	\$ 2,516,774			
David C. Everitt	60,716	\$3,028,610	29,120	\$ 2,565,763			

16, 9, 45, 20, 16, 9, 46, 11, 6, 30.

Inmos A Israel	23.700	\$1,268,331	8.686	φ	765.323
James A. Israel	23,700	\$1,200,331	0,000	Þ	700,323

(1) Represents the total number of shares which were exercised before any withholding of shares to pay the exercise price and taxes.

Value realized on exercise represents taxable compensation based on the closing price of Deere common stock on the NYSE upon exercise minus the exercise price.

The following table details for each option the grant date, the number of shares, and value realized on options exercised.

		Number of Shares		
		Acquired on	F	Value Realized on
		Exercise		Exercise
Name	Grant Date	(#)	_	(\$)
Robert W. Lane	12-Dec-01	103,446	\$	6,363,481
	11-Dec-02	424,538	\$	25,372,514
	10-Dec-03	179,488	\$	9,305,555
		707,472	\$	41,041,550
Michael J. Mack, Jr.	8-Dec-04	11,794	\$	613,977
	7-Dec-05	27,766	\$	1,394,394
		39,560	\$	2,008,371
Samuel R. Allen	10-Dec-03	62,000	\$	3,049,830
	8-Dec-04	71,412	\$	3,426,371
	7-Dec-05	40,442	\$	2,003,211
	6-Dec-06	16,215	\$	643,407
		190,069	\$	9,122,819
David C. Everitt	8-Dec-04	24,024	\$	1,263,638
	7-Dec-05	20,308	\$	1,112,032
	6-Dec-06	16,384	\$	652,940
		60,716	\$	3,028,610
James A. Israel	8-Dec-04	10,752	\$	555,932
	7-Dec-05	12,948	\$	712,399
		23,700	\$	1,268,331

- (3) Represents the number of RSUs that vested during fiscal 2008. These RSUs were granted in December 2004 and vested on December 8, 2007. Although they are vested, these RSUs will not be settled in Deere common stock until December 2009, when the five-year holding period expires.
- (4) Represents the number of RSUs vested multiplied by the closing price (\$88.11) of Deere common stock on the NYSE as of the vesting date.

55

Pension Benefits

The Named Executives are eligible to participate in Deere pension plans that provide benefits based on years of service and pay. Pension benefits are provided under a qualified defined benefit pension plan called the John Deere Pension Plan for Salaried Employees (the \square Salaried Plan \square) and two nonqualified pension plans called the Senior Supplementary Pension Benefit Plan (the \square Supplementary Plan \square) and the John Deere Supplemental Pension Benefit Plan (the \square Supplemental Plan \square).

In 1996, Deere introduced a new pension option under the Salaried Plan known as the <code>[Contemporary Option.]</code> At that time, participants were given the choice between remaining in the existing Salaried Plan option known as the <code>[Traditional Option]</code> or choosing the new Contemporary Option. New employees hired after 1996 automatically participate in the Contemporary Option.

Salaried Plan

The Salaried Plan is a qualified plan subject to certain IRC limitations on benefits and is subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act. Deere makes contributions to, and benefits are paid from, a tax-exempt pension trust. The two pension options, Traditional and Contemporary, provided by the Salaried Plan can be summarized as follows:

Traditional Option

The Traditional Option pension benefit is based on a formula that calculates a retirement benefit using service credit, [Final Average Pay] as defined below, and a multiplier. Generally, Final Average Pay is the participant aggregate salary (up to IRC limits) for the last 60 months prior to retirement divided by 60, unless the last 60 months is not the participant shighest earnings. In that case, the Final Average Pay would be calculated using the participant five highest consecutive anniversary years of earnings.

The formula for calculating monthly pension benefits under the qualified Traditional Option is:

Final Average Pay (up to IRC limits) x Years of Service x 1.5%

Eligibility to retire with unreduced pension benefits under the Traditional Option is based on age and years of service. Participants who are age 60 with ten or more years of service, or who are age 65 with five or more years of service, receive unreduced pension benefits.

Under the Traditional Option, early retirement eligibility occurs upon the earlier of:

- 1) having 30 years of service;
- 2) the sum of the participant |s years of service and age equals 80 or more; or
- 3) reaching age 60 or more with ten years of service.

Pension amounts are reduced 4% for each year that retirement benefits are received before age 60. Named Executives who are eligible to retire early under the Traditional Option are Mr. Lane, Mr. Everitt and Mr. Israel.

Contemporary Option

Under the Contemporary Option, □Career Average Pay□ replaces Final Average Pay in computing retirement benefits. Career Average Pay is calculated using salary plus STI (up to IRC limits). For participants electing the Contemporary Option, the transition to Career Average Pay includes salary and STI awards from 1992 through 1997 plus all subsequent salary and STI award payments until retirement. For salaried employees participating in this option, Deere makes enhanced contributions to the employee \[\] \$\text{801}(k)\$ retirement savings account.

56

The formula for calculating benefits under the qualified Contemporary Option is:

Career Average Pay (up to IRC limits) x Years of Service x 1.5%

Eligibility to retire with unreduced benefits under the Contemporary Option occurs at age 67 for all employees hired after 1996. For employees hired before 1997, the unreduced benefits age is based on years of service as of January 1, 1997 and ranges from ages 60 to 67.

For employees hired before 1997 who were not eligible to retire on January 1, 1997, and employees hired after 1996, early retirement eligibility under the Contemporary Option is the earlier of:

- 1) age 55 with ten or more years of service; or
- 2) age 65 with five or more years of service.

Pension payments are reduced 4% for each year the employee is younger than the unreduced benefits age at retirement. Mr. Allen is the only Named Executive currently eligible to retire under the Contemporary Option.

Supplementary Plan

The Supplementary Plan is an unfunded, nonqualified excess defined benefit plan, which provides additional pension benefits in a comparable amount to those benefits that the participant would have received under the Salaried Plan in the absence of IRC limitations. Benefit payments for the Supplementary Plan are made from the assets of Deere.

The formula used to calculate the benefit payable under the Supplementary Plan is the same as that used under the Salaried Plan, except that eligible earnings include only amounts above IRC qualified plan limits. The formulas can be summarized as follows:

Traditional Option

Final Average Pay (<u>above</u> IRC limits) x Years of Service x 1.5%

Contemporary Option

Career Average Pay (<u>above</u> IRC limits) x Years of Service x 1.5%

Supplemental Plan

The Supplemental Plan is an unfunded, nonqualified supplemental retirement plan for certain executives, including all Named Executives. There also is a specified list of officers who, as of November 1, 1996, are eligible for the Officer Option under the Supplemental Plan. Benefit payments for the Supplemental Plan are made from the assets of Deere.

The formulas for calculating benefits under the Supplemental Plan for each pension option can be summarized as follows:

Contemporary Option

Career Average Pay x Years of Service as grade 13 and above beginning 1 January 1997 x 0.5%

57

Traditional Option

The Supplemental Plan benefit under the Traditional Option is derived by subtracting the value of the Traditional Option (Salaried Plan plus Supplementary Plan) from the value of the Contemporary Option (Salaried Plan, Supplementary Plan plus Supplemental Plan) had it been chosen. If this amount is positive, the Named Executive will receive this additional amount as a Supplemental Plan benefit.

Officer Option

The Officer Option was closed to new entrants in 1996. Moreover, there are only two remaining active officers eligible for the Officer Option, one of whom is Mr. Lane. The Officer Option is available to Mr. Lane only if he retires after age 60. Generally, the benefit consists of an additional one-half percent of pension eligible earnings for the number of years the participant served as an officer of Deere. The amount disclosed in the Pension Benefits Table will continue to significantly increase for Mr. Lane as he approaches and reaches age 60.

The formula for the Officer Option is as follows:

Officer Average Pay (as defined below)

x Years of Service as a non-officer

x 1.5%

plus

Officer Average Pay

x Years of Service as an officer

x 2.0%

less

Traditional Option benefit (Salaried Plan plus Supplementary Plan)

Officer Average Pay consists of the average of the highest five years of salary (not necessarily consecutive) of the last ten years of service, plus the higher of the target or actual STI awards received.

58

Fiscal 2008 Pension Benefits Table

			Number of	Present	
		Assumed	Years of	Value of	
		Retirement	Credited	Accumulated	d Annual
		Age	Service	Benefit	Benefits
	Plan Name	(#)	(#)	(\$)	(\$)
Name	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)
Robert W. Lane	Salaried Plan	60	26.8	\$ 809,093	1 \$ 85,330
Traditional Option	Supplementary Plan	60	26.8	\$ 5,532,373	1 \$ 398,156
with Officer Option	Supplemental Plan	60	12.8	\$ 16,117,848	8 \$1,159,976
	Total			\$ 22,459,310	0 \$1,643,462
Michael J. Mack Jr.	Salaried Plan	65	22.3	\$ 179,853	3 \$ 54,420
Contemporary Option	Supplementary Plan	65	22.3	\$ 395,370	6 \$ 85,495
	Supplemental Plan	65	11.8	\$ 110,473	3 \$ 24,712
	Total			\$ 685,702	2 \$ 164,627
Samuel R. Allen	Salaried Plan	63	33.4	\$ 458,644	4 \$ 85,309
Contemporary Option	Supplementary Plan	63	33.4	\$ 1,376,028	8 \$ 179,654
	Supplemental Plan	63	11.8	\$ 226,140	6 \$ 31,275
	Total			\$ 2,060,818	8 \$ 296,238
David C. Everitt	Salaried Plan	60	33.4	\$ 811,03	7 \$ 106,265
Traditional Option	Supplementary Plan	60	33.4	\$ 1,594,32	7 \$ 142,284
	Supplemental Plan	63	11.8	\$ 344,932	2 \$ 44,619
	Total			\$ 2,750,290	6 \$ 293,168
James A. Israel	Salaried Plan	60	29.8	\$ 526,983	1 \$ 94,870
Traditional Option	Supplementary Plan	60	29.8	\$ 552,563	1 \$ 67,800
	Supplemental Plan	64	11.8	\$ 167,342	2 \$ 32,957
	Total			\$ 1,246,884	4 \$ 195,627

(1) Benefits are provided under the Salaried Plan, the Supplementary Plan and the Supplemental Plan as described in the narrative preceding the table.

The assumed retirement age is the earliest age at which the Named Executive could retire without any benefit reduction due to age or normal retirement age, if earlier.

(2)

(3)

Years and months of service credit under each plan as of October 31, 2008. The years of credited service are equal to years of service with Deere for the Salaried and Supplementary Plan. Service credit under the Supplemental Plan, with the exception of the Officer Option, is based on service as a grade 13 or above, beginning January 1, 1997. For the Officer Option, service is based on time as an officer eligible for this plan.

(4)

The actuarial present value of the accumulated benefit is shown as of October 31, 2008, and is provided as a straight-life annuity for the qualified pension plan and a lump sum for nonqualified pension plan benefits. Pension benefits are not reduced for any social security benefits or other offset amounts that the Named Executive may receive.

An actuarial present value is calculated by estimating expected future payments starting at an assumed retirement age, weighting the estimated payments by the estimated probability of surviving to each post-retirement age and discounting the weighted payments at an assumed discount rate to reflect the time value of money. The actuarial present value represents an estimate of the amount which, if invested today at the discount rate, would be sufficient on an average basis to provide estimated future payments based on the current accumulated benefit. Actual benefit present values will vary from these estimates depending on many factors, including a Named Executive sactual retirement age.

50

The following assumptions were used to calculate the present value of the accumulated benefit. References to the assumptions used in fiscal 2007 are included below because the change in the accumulated benefit from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008 is included in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table under the column \Box Change in Pension Value \Box :

- each of the Named Executives continues as an executive until the earliest age at which they could retire without any benefit reduction due to age or normal retirement age, whichever is earlier, as defined in the Salaried Plan:
- present value amounts were determined based on the financial accounting discount rate for U.S. pension plans of 8.35% for fiscal 2008 and 6.30% for fiscal 2007;
- benefits subject to a lump sum distribution were determined using an interest rate of 4.27% for fiscal 2008 and 4.80% for fiscal 2007;
- the mortality table used for the qualified plan was the RP2015 table for fiscal 2008 and RP2014 table for fiscal 2007 published by the IRS;
- the mortality table used for the nonqualified plans for lump sum payments for fiscal 2008 was the RP2015 table and for fiscal 2007 was the 94GAR table published by IRS; and
- pensionable earnings is calculated for each fiscal year just completed using base pay as an estimate (3.5% over the prior year) with no future increase and the STI bonus as an estimate at target. Pensionable earnings for prior years is calculated based on actual base pay and actual STI earned for prior years.
- (5) Represents the estimated annual benefit amounts under each plan.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

The Fiscal 2008 Deferred Compensation Table below shows information about three programs:

- 1) the John Deere Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan (☐Deferred Plan☐), a nonqualified deferred compensation plan;
- 2) the John Deere Defined Contribution Restoration Plan (☐DCRP☐), a nonqualified savings plan; and
- 3) deferred RSUs.

Deferred Plan

Under the Deferred Plan, through fiscal 2008, Named Executives could defer any part (in 5% increments up to 95%) of their cash compensation, which includes salary, STI and MTI. For deferrals elected in fiscal 2008, up to 70% of salary may be deferred and STI and MTI awards may be deferred up to 95%. On the first day of each calendar quarter, the balance in the accounts under the Deferred Plan is credited with interest at the prime rate (as determined by the Federal Reserve Statistical Release for the prior month) plus 2%, as of the last day of the preceding quarter. For fiscal 2008, the rates paid ranged between 7.0% and 9.5%.

An election to defer salary must be made prior to the beginning of the calendar year in which deferral occurs. An election to defer STI must be made prior to the beginning of the fiscal year upon which the award is based. An election to defer MTI must be made prior to the close of the fiscal year preceding the calendar year of payment. Participants may elect to receive the deferred funds in a lump sum or in equal annual installments not to exceed ten years. Distribution must be completed within ten years following retirement. All deferral elections and associated distribution schedules are irrevocable. This plan is unfunded and participant accounts are at risk in the event of the company bankruptcy.

DCRP

The DCRP is designed to allow executives participating in Deere Contemporary Option to defer employee contributions and receive employer matching contributions on up to 6% of eligible earnings that are otherwise limited by the IRC. For DCRP purposes, eligible earnings include salary,

60

STI and commission compensation. None of the Named Executives receive commission compensation. The 401(k) deferral percentage selected by the employee in place each October 31st is used during the following calendar year to calculate the DCRP employee contribution. This plan is unfunded and participant accounts are at risk in the event of the company \Box s bankruptcy.

Two investment options are available under the DCRP: the prime rate, as determined by the Federal Reserve Statistical Release for the prior month, plus 2%; or a rate of return based on the S&P 500 Index for the prior month. Participants may choose either investment option for any portion of their account. Participants can change investment options each calendar year. During fiscal 2008, the annualized rates of return under the two options were as follows:

Earnings Under Investment Options

Prime plus								
	2%	S&P 500 Index						
November-07	9.75%	34.10%						
December-07	9.52%	-59.44%						
January-08	9.33%	12.98%						
February-08	9.08%	-81.50%						
March-08	8.04%	-20.79%						
April-08	7.66%	-33.59%						
May-08	7.25%	48.78%						
June-08	7.02%	28.68%						
July-08	7.00%	-53.00%						
August-08	7.00%	-75.08%						
September-08	7.00%	23.04%						
October-08	7.00%	-60.42%						

Distribution options for participants eligible for retirement as of December 31, 2005, who made an election prior to December 31, 2005, consist of a single lump sum payment, a specified dollar amount each year, or decrementing withdrawals over a specified number of years. For all other participants, distribution options consist of a lump sum distribution one year following the date of separation, or, in the case of retirement, five annual installments, beginning one year following the retirement date.

Deferred RSUs

There are two scenarios under which deferred RSUs can appear in the following table:

• After RSUs are vested, generally three years from the grant date, they must be held for a restriction period as follows:

Grant Date	Date Vested	Restriction Period
December 2002	December 2005	Retirement or no longer active employee
December 2003	December 2006	Five years (December 2008)
December 2004	December 2007	Five years (December 2009)

• For RSUs granted starting in December 2003, a Named Executive may elect deferral of settlement for a minimum of five years. If a deferral election is made, the RSUs will be settled in shares of Deere common stock five or more years after the originally scheduled conversion date.

The Deferred RSUs will not be settled in Deere common stock until either the election period or the restriction period expires.

61

Fiscal 2008 Deferred Compensation Table

		Con	xecutive tributions	Co	Registrant ontributions in Last FY	Aggregate Earnings in Last Fiscal Year		regate Irawals	I	Aggregate Balance at Last FYE
		111					Distril	/ butions		
Name	Plan		(\$) (1)		(\$) (2)	(\$) (3)				(\$) (4)
Robert W. Lane	Deferred Plan		\$ _□	\$		\$ 235,069	\$	\$)	¢	3,133,846
Robert W. Lane	DCRP Plan					\$ 233,009	\$		_ф	J,133,040
	Deferred RSUs			\$	11,454,300	 ⊔ (16,599,957)	\$ \$		ф ф	⊔ 15,085,058
	Total		\$ [\$ [11,454,300	(16,364,888)	\$ \$			18,218,904
Michael I Maels In	Deferred Plan		- U			 22,192				
Michael J. Mack, Jr.			\$ 8,708	\$	101 466	\$ · ·	\$	П	\$	295,851
	DCRP Plan		\$58,975	\$	101,466	\$ (55,055)	\$		\$	506,731
	Deferred RSUs		\$ [\$	839,512	\$ (802,817)		4,169	\$	765,956
	Total		\$67,683	\$	940,978	\$ (835,680)		4,169	\$	1,568,538
Samuel R. Allen	Deferred Plan		\$	\$		\$	\$		\$	
	DCRP Plan		\$64,230	\$	109,837	\$ 67,404	\$		\$	936,160
	Deferred RSUs		\$	\$	2,516,774	\$ (2,973,746)	\$		\$	2,646,604
	Total		\$64,230	\$	2,626,611	\$ (2,906,342)	\$		\$	3,582,764
David C. Everitt	Deferred Plan		\$	\$		\$ 69,985	\$		\$	933,012
	DCRP Plan		\$	\$		\$	\$		\$	
	Deferred RSUs		\$	\$	2,565,763	\$ (3,103,499)	\$		\$	2,769,379
	Total		\$ □	\$	2,565,763	\$ (3,033,514)	\$	П	\$	3,702,391
James A. Israel	Deferred Plan		\$ [\$	П	\$ П	\$	П	\$	П
J	DCRP Plan		\$	\$	Ī	\$ П	\$	П	\$	'n
	Deferred RSUs		\$ [\$	765,323	\$ (430,391)			\$	334,932
	Total		\$ [\$	765,323	\$ (430,391)	\$	П	\$	334,932

The amounts in this column represent employee compensation deferrals that are included on the Fiscal 2008 Summary

Compensation Table under the □Salary□ column.

(2)

The amounts in this column associated with the DCRP Plan are included in Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table under the \square All Other Compensation \square column and represent Deere contributions during the fiscal year. The amounts in this column associated with Deferred RSUs represent RSUs that vested in the current fiscal year, but have not been converted into Deere common stock. The amounts are equal to those reported in the Fiscal 2008 Option Exercises and Stock Vested table under the column \square Value Realized on Vesting. \square

(3)

For the Deferred Plan accounts, total earnings are calculated using the prime rate plus 2%. For the DCRP accounts, depending upon the investment choices made by the Named Executive, total earnings are calculated using the prime rate plus 2% or the change in market value of the S&P 500 Index for each month from October 31, 2007 to October 31, 2008. For rates of return, see [Earnings Under Investment Options] in the narrative preceding the Fiscal 2008 Deferred Compensation Table. For the Deferred RSUs accounts, the earnings represent the change in the intrinsic value of the RSUs. The following table shows the breakdown of total earnings on deferred compensation between above-market and at-market components.

62

		Earn Above-Market (\$)	al Year Aggregate Earnings	
Name	Plan	(a)	(b)	(\$)
Robert W. Lane	Deferred Plan	\$77,827	\$ 157,242	\$ 235,069
	DCRP Plan	\$	\$	\$
	Deferred RSUs	\$ □	\$ (16,599,957)	\$ (16,599,957)
	Total	\$77,827	\$ (16,442,715)	\$ (16,364,888)
Michael J. Mack, Jr.	Deferred Plan	\$ 7,458	\$ 14,734	\$ 22,192
	DCRP Plan	\$ 4,601	\$ (59,656)	\$ (55,055)
	Deferred RSUs	\$ □	\$ (802,817)	\$ (802,817)
	Total	\$12,059	\$ (847,739)	\$ (835,680)
Samuel R. Allen	Deferred Plan	\$ □	\$	\$
	DCRP Plan	\$23,748	\$ 43,656	\$ 67,404
	Deferred RSUs	\$ □	\$ (2,973,746)	\$ (2,973,746)
	Total	\$23,748	\$ (2,930,090)	\$ (2,906,342)
David C. Everitt	Deferred Plan	\$23,171	\$ 46,814	\$ 69,985
	DCRP Plan	\$ □	\$	\$
	Deferred RSUs	\$ □	\$ (3,103,499)	\$ (3,103,499)
	Total	\$23,171	\$ (3,056,685)	\$ (3,033,514)
James A. Israel	Deferred Plan			\$
	DCRP Plan			\$
	Deferred RSUs		\$ (430,391)	\$ (430,391)
	Total	\$ □	\$ (430,391)	\$ (430,391)

(a)

Represents above-market earnings on compensation that is deferred by the Named Executive under nonqualified deferred compensation plans. Above-market earnings represent the difference between the prime rate plus 2% and 120% of the applicable federal long-term rate prescribed by the IRC. The amounts in this column are included in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table under the column

□Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings.□

(b)

Represents earnings not considered to be above-market under the SEC rules on compensation deferred under Deere s nonqualified deferred compensation plans. These amounts are not required to be included on the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table.

(4) Of the aggregate balance, the following amounts were reported as compensation to the Named Executive in the Summary Compensation Table in prior years: Mr. Lane, \$122,031; Mr. Mack, \$307,048; Mr. Allen, \$86,253; and Mr. Everitt, \$36,331.

Fiscal 2008 Potential Payments upon Change in Control

Deere has entered into change in control agreements with certain executive officers, including each of the Named Executives. These agreements are intended to provide for continuity of management if there is a change in control of Deere. The agreements have an initial term of two years and are automatically extended in one-year increments, unless Deere gives notice of termination to the executive at least six months prior to the expiration of the current agreement. If Deere does give notice to terminate an agreement, the agreement will remain in effect until the end of its then-remaining term. Deere, however, may not give notice of termination of the agreement within the six months following a []potential change in control[] (as defined in the agreements).

63

If a $\$ change in control $\$ (as defined in the agreements) occurs, the agreements will continue to be effective for the longer of: (a) twenty-four months beyond the change in control; or (b) until Deere has satisfied its obligations under the agreements. A $\$ change in control $\$ is defined generally as any change in control of Deere that is required to be reported in a proxy statement by Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act. The following are $\$ change in control $\$ events:

- any [person, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act (with certain exceptions), acquires 30 percent or more of Deere voting securities;
- a majority of Deere s directors are replaced during the term of the agreements without the approval of at least two-thirds of the existing directors or directors previously approved by the then existing directors;
- any merger or business combination of Deere and another company, unless the outstanding voting securities of Deere prior to the transaction continue to represent at least 60% of the voting securities of the new company; or
- Deere is completely liquidated, or all, or substantially all, of Deere sassets are sold or disposed of.

The following are \square potential change in control \square events:

- Deere enters into an agreement that would result in a change in control (as described above); or
- any <code>[person[]</code> acquires 15 percent or more of Deere[]s voting securities and the Board resolves that a potential change in control has occurred.

Under the change in control agreements, if a Named Executive is terminated, they are entitled to receive severance payments in the following situations:

- Deere terminates the executive within the six months preceding or within 24 months following the change in control, other than termination for death, disability or for [cause] (as defined in the agreements); or
- ullet The executive terminates employment for $[good\ reason]$ (as defined in the agreements) within 24 months following a change in control.

Benefits provided under the change in control agreements and other benefit plans are described in the footnotes to the following table. Although not reflected in the following table, the change in control agreement states that Deere will pay the executive sreasonable legal fees and expenses if the executive must hire a lawyer to enforce the agreement.

Under the change of control agreements, the executives agree: (a) not to disclose or to use for their own purposes confidential and proprietary Deere information; and (b) for a period of two years following termination of employment, not to induce Deere employees to leave Deere, or to interfere with Deere business.

In addition, the Omnibus Plan and the Deferred Plan each contain change in control provisions that may trigger payments under these plans. Under the Omnibus Plan, unless the Board determines otherwise, and regardless of whether the employee was terminated or not, all outstanding equity awards vest and restriction periods are ended upon the occurrence of a change in control. All outstanding RSUs are cashed out as of the date of the change in control and the employee has the right to exercise all outstanding options. These payments are labeled in the table below as \Box Change in Control \Box only. Under the Deferred Plan, in the event of certain changes in control, the Committee may elect to terminate the plan within 12 months following the change in control and distribute all account balances, or the Committee may decide to keep the Deferred Plan in effect and modify the Deferred Plan to reflect the impact of the change in control.

The following table contains estimated potential payments that may be due to a Named Executive should a change in control event occur. Although the calculations are intended to provide reasonable estimates of the potential payments, they are based on numerous assumptions, as described in the footnotes, and may not represent the actual amount a Named Executive would receive if a change in

64

control occurred. As explained in the footnotes, the payments listed represent the incremental amounts due to Named Executives that exceed what the Named Executives would have received without the change in control. Not included in this table are the following payments to which the Named Executive is already entitled and have been reported in previous sections of this proxy:

- amounts already earned under STI and MTI as of October 31, 2008 (reported in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table);
- the exercise of outstanding vested options (reported in Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2008 Year-End); and
- distribution of the nonqualified Deferred Compensation (reported on the Fiscal 2008 Deferred Compensation Table).

Name	Salary (1)	STI (2)	MTI (3)	Stock Awards (4)	Stock Options (5)	Welfare Benefits (6)	Defined Contribution Plans (7)	Excess Pension (8)
Robert W. Lane		Φ. Π	44 220 602	Ф	Φ Π	ф П	ф П	4
~Change in Control and	\$	\$	\$4,220,682	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
~Change in Control and Termination without							_	
Cause		÷ 7 020 222	± 4 220 602	Ф.	\$ П	# 22 GE 4	1. AC FOO	\$ 24.7E0.670
	\$4,339,500	\$ 7,928,232	\$4,220,682	\$	\$	\$32,654	\$ 46,500	\$24,759,679
Michael J. Mack, Jr.			÷0.047.400	± 1 201 207	# TC 240	ф П	* D	*
~Change in Control only	\$ ⊔	\$	\$2,317,432	\$ 1,301,207	\$56,349	\$	\$	\$
~Change in Control and								
Termination without	3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2							
Cause Samuel R. Allen	\$1,605,600	\$ 1,611,582	\$2,317,432	\$ 1,301,207	\$56,349	\$36,840	\$372,738	\$ 498,795
~Change in Control only	¢	s П	\$1,293,419	\$ П	\$ П	\$ П	\$ П	\$
~Change in Control and	3	_Ф	\$ 1,295, 1 19_	_φ ⊔_	_ ⊅	Φ	_ J	Ψ
Termination without								
Cause	\$1,745,400	\$ 2,090,270	\$1,293,419	\$ П	\$ П	\$26,428	\$399,468	\$ 1,945,127
David C. Everitt	\$1,745,400	\$ 2,090,270	\$1,290,419	D	Ъ П	\$ 20,420	\$399,400	\$ 1,945,127
~Change in Control only	\$	\$	\$1,293,419	\$	\$ □	\$ □	\$	\$
~Change in Control and	_	_			' =	· =	_	
Termination without								

Cause Iames A. Israel	\$1,746,300	\$ 2,117,973	\$1,293,419	\$		\$		\$26,430	\$	46,500	\$	1,959,200		
~Change in Control only	\$ П	\$ □	\$1,293,419	\$	П	\$	П	\$ П	\$	П	\$			
~Change in Control and			, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,											
Termination without														
Cause	\$1,322,100	\$ 1,397,395	\$1,293,419	\$		\$		\$25,412	\$	46,500	\$	1,164,401		
(1)		The change in control agreement provides for a lump sum payment of three times the annual base salary.												
(2)														
(3)		particip paymen perform perform	T plan contai pants, as of that based on a nance periodenance periodenance periodenance 5008 Summan 65	ne date of ctual perf s then in p ending O	a clorm form prog ctob	nange ance r ress. 1 er 31,	in α esu The 20	control, to alts to date payout fo 08, is repo	a l e fo r t	lump sum or all four he four-y	M			

under the column □Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation□ and is not duplicated in this table. For Mr. Mack, the amount shown in this table represents the payout for the three remaining performance periods. In the event of death, disability or retirement, employees that were eligible on September 30th in the year prior to a payout receive an award. Since Mr. Lane, Mr. Allen, Mr. Everitt and Mr. Israel are eligible for retirement and would be entitled to the 2006-2009 MTI payout regardless of a change in control event, the amounts shown in the table for Mr. Lane, Mr. Allen, Mr. Everitt and Mr. Israel represent the payout for the last two remaining performance periods.

In the event of a change in control under the terms of the Omnibus Plan, vesting and restriction requirements are no longer applicable for all stock awards and they are cashed out. As of October 31, 2008, all RSUs are restricted; therefore all outstanding RSUs could be cashed out based on the closing price on October 31, 2008, for Deere common stock on the NYSE which was \$38.56. Since, however, Mr. Lane, Mr. Allen, Mr. Everitt and Mr. Israel are eligible for retirement and RSUs will continue to vest over the three-year period whether or not they continue to provide services, there is no incremental benefit of the accelerated vesting for these individuals. For Mr. Mack, who is not eligible for retirement, the amount shown in this table represents all unvested RSUs as of October 31, 2008. Vested RSUs are not included because they are already earned and included on the Deferred Compensation Table. These amounts are included in the Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2008 Year-End.

Edgar	Filling: DEERE & CO - Form DEF 14A
(5)	In the event of a change in control under the terms of the Omnibus Plan, all outstanding stock options vest and can be exercised immediately. Since, however, Mr. Lane, Mr. Allen, Mr. Everitt and Mr. Israel are eligible for retirement and stock options vest immediately upon retirement, there is no incremental benefit of the accelerated vesting for these individuals. For Mr. Mack, who is not eligible for retirement, the amount represents the number of outstanding, unexercisable options multiplied by the difference between the closing price for Deere common stock on the NYSE on October 31, 2008, which was \$38.56 and the option exercise prices. These amounts are included in the Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2008 Year-End.
(6)	The change in control agreement provides for continuation of health care, life and accidental death and dismemberment, and disability insurance for three full years at the same premium cost and coverage. This benefit is discontinued if the Named Executive receives similar benefits from a subsequent employer during this three year period.
	F7 1 1

The change in control agreement provides for an amount in cash equal to three times Deere\subsetes contributions on behalf of each of the Named Executives under Deere∏s defined contribution plans for the plan year preceding termination (or, if greater, for the plan year immediately prior to the change in control).

Under the change in control agreement, Named Executives are eligible for service credit and pension benefits as if they had remained employees for an additional three years. These additional benefits are paid from the Supplemental Plan. The amount shown represents the sum of the benefits that would be paid in a single cash payment based on the following assumptions:

- present value amounts were determined based on a discount rate of 8.35%;
- lump sum distribution amounts were determined using an interest rate of 4.79%:
- the mortality table used for all plans was 94GAR; and
- pensionable earnings earned were based on actual base salary and STI awards paid for fiscal 2008.

If any payments made under the change in control agreement would be subject to the excise tax that the IRC imposes on excess parachute payments, Deere will cap the total payments made to the Named Executive at the excise tax threshold, so that no excise tax will be imposed. If, however, the amount the Named Executive would have received exceeds the cap by at least ten percent, then Deere will pay the full amount due under the change in control agreement, and

66

Deere will [gross-up[] the Named Executive[]s compensation for this excise tax, for any federal, state and local income taxes applicable to the excise tax, and for tax penalties and interest. This lump sum payment will be made to the Named Executive as soon as practical, but no later than 30 days from date of termination.

Fiscal 2008 Potential Payments upon Termination of Employment Other than Following a Change in Control

The following table summarizes the estimated payments to be made to Named Executives under provisions of plans or established Deere practices in the event of termination of employment for death, disability, retirement, termination without cause, termination for cause and voluntary separation. Although the calculations are

(7)

(8)

(9)

intended to provide reasonable estimates of the potential payments, they are based on numerous assumptions, as described in the footnotes, and may not represent the actual amount a Named Executive would receive if an eligible termination occurred.

The amounts shown assume the termination event occurred on and the Named Executive was actively employed until October 31, 2008.

							Pres
				Stock	Stock	Deferred	Acc
	Salary	STI	MTI	Awards	Options	Compensation	Pen
Name	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	
Robert W. Lane							
Death	\$ П	\$ 3,588,863	\$ 6,683,116	\$ 20,894,623	\$ 3.950.975	\$3.133.846	\$4
Disability	\$ 3,420,795	\$ 3,588,863	\$ 6,683,116	\$ 23,389,378	\$ 3,950,975	\$3,133,846	\$
Retirement	\$	\$ 3,588,863	\$ 6,683,116	\$ 23,389,378	\$ 3,950,975	\$3,133,846	\$ 8
Termination Without Cause	\$ 1,446,500	\$ 3,588,863	\$ 3,341,558	\$ 15,085,058	\$	\$3,133,846	\$ 8
Termination For Cause	\$	\$ 3,588,863	\$ 3,341,558	\$ 15,085,058	\$	\$3,133,846	\$ 8
Voluntary Separation (8)							
Michael J. Mack, Jr.							
Death	\$	\$ 906,228	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 1,634,211	\$ 56,353	\$ 802,582	\$
Disability Retirement (9)	\$ 850,235	\$ 906,228	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 2,067,163	\$ 56,353	\$ 802,582	\$ 1
Termination Without Cause	\$ 535,200	\$ 906,228	\$ 1,024,013	\$ 765,956	\$	\$ 802,582	\$ 1
Termination For Cause	\$ 555,200 \$ [\$ 906,228	\$ 1,024,013	\$ 765,956	\$ [\$ 802,582	\$ 1
Voluntary Separation	\$ I	\$ 906,228	\$ 1,024,013	\$ 765,956	\$	\$ 802,582	\$ 1
Samuel R. Allen		, ,	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Death	\$	\$ 982,949	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 3,863,789	\$ 82,079	\$ 936,160	\$ 1
Disability	\$ 1,030,751	\$ 982,949	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 4,417,164	\$ 82,079	\$ 936,160	\$ 2
Retirement	, , , , , , ,	\$ 982,949	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 4,417,164	\$ 82,079	\$ 936,160	\$ 3
Termination Without Cause	\$ 581,800	\$ 982,949	\$ 1,024,013	\$ 2,646,604	\$	\$ 936,160	\$ 3
Termination For Cause	\$	\$ 982,949	\$ 1,024,013	\$ 2,646,604	\$	\$ 936,160	\$ 3
Voluntary Separation (8)							
David C. Everitt							
Death	\$	\$ 984,166	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 3,998,788	\$ 83,677	\$ 933,012	\$ 1
Disability	\$ 1,041,526	\$ 984,166	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 4,553,666	\$ 83,677	\$ 933,012	\$ 2
Retirement	\$	\$ 984,166	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 4,553,666	\$ 83,677	\$ 933,012	\$ 3
Termination Without Cause	\$ 582,100	\$ 984,166	\$ 1,024,013	\$ 2,769,379	\$ □	\$ 933,012	\$ 3
Termination For Cause	\$	\$ 984,166	\$1,024,013	\$ 2,769,379	\$	\$ 933,012	\$ 3
Voluntary Separation (8)					_		
James A. Israel							
Death	\$ □	\$ 746,215	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 1,146,119	\$ 53,346	\$ □	\$
Disability	\$ 717,231	\$ 746,215	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 1,528,133	\$ 53,346	\$ N	\$ 1
Retirement	\$ I	\$ 746,215	\$ 2,048,026	\$ 1,528,133	\$ 53,346	\$	\$ 1
Termination Without Cause	\$ 440,700	\$ 746,215	\$ 1,024,013	\$ 334,932	-\$ D	\$ П	\$ 1
						_	
Termination For Cause	\$	\$ 746,215	\$ 1,024,013	\$ 334,932	\$	\$ □	\$ 1
Voluntary Separation (8)							

67

(1)

None of the Named Executives has an employment agreement. Deere, however, has severance guidelines that provide compensation to assist an employee through a transition period if termination is initiated by Deere for reasons other than cause. Deere severance guidelines provide for payment of one-half month of salary plus another one-half month of salary for each complete year of employment, up to a maximum of one year. Deere may elect to pay severance in either a lump sum or via salary continuance, unless the

amount of severance exceeds two times the applicable limit under Section 401(a)(17) of the IRC, in which case severance will only be paid in a lump sum.

Under Deere S Long-Term Disability Plan, if disabled before age 64, Named Executives receive monthly benefits until age 65 equal to 60% of the their salary plus the average of the three STI awards received immediately prior to the start of disability. The amount shown for disability represents the present value of the monthly benefit from the time of the disability, October 31, 2008, to the time the Named Executive turns age 65.

Under all termination events, the amount of STI earned for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008, would be payable in a lump sum generally within two months after the end of the fiscal year, but in no event later than March 15th of the calendar year following the end of the fiscal year. This amount is also reported in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table under the column □Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation.□

Under all termination events, the amount of MTI earned for the performance period ending on October 31, 2008, would be payable in a lump sum generally within two months after the end of the fiscal year, but in no event later than March 15th of the calendar year following the end of the fiscal year. This amount is also reported in the Fiscal 2008 Summary Compensation Table under the column □Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation. □ Eligibility for payment of an MTI award is established on September 30 on the year prior to a payout. In the event of death, disability or retirement, employees that were eligible on September 30th in the year prior to a payout receive an award. The payout for the performance period ending October 31, 2009, has been estimated based on SVA performance through the end of fiscal 2008 and does not include any results for fiscal 2009. The actual payment in 2009 would include results for fiscal 2009 and would be paid in a lump sum within the time period described above.

In the event of death, a prorated number of unvested RSUs will vest based on the number of months lapsed since the grant date. The remaining unvested RSUs will be forfeited. Restrictions will lapse in January following death at which time the vested RSUs will be converted to shares of common stock.

In the event of disability or retirement, RSUs will continue to vest over the three-year period and will be converted to shares of Deere common stock at the end of the restriction period.

In the event of termination with or without cause or voluntary separation, any vested RSUs will be cashed out. All unvested RSUs will be forfeited.

The following table details the number and value of RSUs under each scenario. In all cases, the market value is based on the closing price for Deere common stock on the NYSE on October 31, 2008, which was \$38.56.

68

of # of Total # of Value
Unvested Vested Restricted of Restricted

(3)

(4)

	RSUs	RSUs	RSUs	RSUs
Robert W. Lane				
Death	150,663	391,210	541,873	\$ 20,894,623
Disability or Retirement	215,361	391,210	606,571	\$ 23,389,378
Termination Without or For Cause (8)		391,210	391,210	\$ 15,085,058
Michael J. Mack, Jr.				
Death	22,517	19,864	42,381	\$ 1,634,211
Disability	33,745	19,864	53,609	\$ 2,067,163
Termination Without or For				
Cause or Voluntary				
Separation		19,864	19,864	\$ 765,956
Samuel R. Allen				
Death	31,566	68,636	100,202	\$ 3,863,789
Disability or Retirement	45,917	68,636	114,553	\$ 4,417,164
Termination Without or For Cause (8)		68,636	68,636	\$ 2,646,604
David C. Everitt				
Death	31,883	71,820	103,703	\$ 3,998,788
Disability or Retirement	46,273	71,820	118,093	\$ 4,553,666
Termination Without or For Cause (8)		71,820	71,820	\$ 2,769,379
James A. Israel				
Death	21,037	8,686	29,723	\$ 1,146,119
Disability or Retirement	30,944	8,686	39,630	\$ 1,528,133
Termination Without or For Cause (8)		8,686	8,686	\$ 334,932

(5)

In the event of death, disability or retirement, all outstanding stock options are vested immediately. In the case of a death, the heirs have one year to exercise options. In the case of disability or retirement, options expire within five years. The amount shown in this table represents the number of stock options multiplied by the difference between the closing price for Deere common stock on the NYSE on October 31, 2008, which was \$38.56 and the option exercise price. These outstanding stock options are reported in the Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2008 Year-End table. In the event of termination with or without cause or voluntary separation, all outstanding stock options are forfeited.

(6)

In all cases, balances held in the nonqualified deferred compensation plans are payable to the employee. These amounts are reported in the Fiscal 2008 Deferred Compensation Table under Deferred Plan and DCRP. The Deferred RSUs reported in the Fiscal 2008 Deferred Compensation Table are reported on this table under the column $[\![$ Stock Awards. $[\![]$

(7)

The present value of the accumulated pension benefit was calculated using the following assumptions:

- present value amounts were determined based on a discount rate of 8.35%;
- lump sum distribution amounts were determined using an interest rate of 8.35% for the Salaried Plan and 4.79% for the Supplementary and Supplemental Plans;
- the mortality table used for the Salaried Plan was RP2015 except for the Disability scenarios for which the RP2000 Disabled Retiree mortality table was used;
- the mortality table used for the Supplementary and Supplemental Plans was 94GAR; and
- pensionable earnings earned were based on actual base salary and STI awards paid for fiscal 2008.

Following are additional explanations related to the various scenarios:

(1)

(2)

- Death: This amount represents the present value of the accrued survivor benefit as of October 31, 2008.
- Disability: This amount assumes service through age 65 and includes service credit for time on long-term disability with the exception that service credit does not continue under the Officer Option.
- Retirement: For the Named Executives eligible to retire, this amount represents the present value of the accrued benefits if they were to retire as of October 31, 2008.
- Termination Without Cause, Termination For Cause and Voluntary Separation: This amount represents the present value of the accrued benefit as of October 31, 2008.

(8) Since Mr. Lane, Mr. Allen, Mr. Everitt and Mr. Israel are eligible for early retirement, the scenario for Voluntary Separation is not applicable. Under this scenario, these Named Executives would retire.
 (9) Since Mr. Mack is not eligible for normal or early retirement, this scenario is not applicable.

The following table shows the total number of outstanding options and shares available for future issuances under Deere sequity compensation plans as of October 31, 2008:

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

	Number of Securities to be Issued Upon		Number of Securities Remaining Available for Future Issuance		
	Exercise of		Under Equity		
	Outstanding	Weighted-Average	Compensation Plans		
	Options,	Exercise Price of	(excluding securities reflected in column (a))		
	Warrants	Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights			
	and Rights (#)	(\$)	(#)		
Plan Category	(a)	(b)	(c)		
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by					
Security Holders	17,746,610 (1)	\$ 40.60	16,187,149 (2)		
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by			_		
Security Holders	-0-		-0- (3)		
Total	17,746,610	\$ 40.60	16,187,149		

This amount includes 1,636,160 restricted stock units awarded under the John Deere Omnibus Equity and Incentive Plan. The units are payable only in stock either five years after the award is granted or upon retirement. The weighted-average exercise price information in column (b) does not include these units.

This amount includes 86,062 shares available under the John Deere Non-Employee Director Stock Ownership Plan for future awards of restricted stock or restricted stock units and 16,101,087 shares available under the John Deere Omnibus Equity and Incentive Plan. Under the John Deere Omnibus Equity and Incentive Plan, Deere may

award shares as performance awards, restricted stock or restricted stock equivalents, or other awards consistent with the purposes of the plan as determined by the Compensation Committee. In addition, shares covered by outstanding awards become available for new awards if the award is forfeited or expires before delivery of the shares.

(3)

Deere currently has no equity compensation plans, other than 401(k) savings plans, that are not approved by stockholders.

71

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS AND NOMINATIONS

Next year s annual meeting of stockholders will be held on February 24, 2010. If you intend to present a proposal at next year s annual meeting, and you wish to have the proposal included in the proxy statement for that meeting, you must submit the proposal in writing to the Corporate Secretary at the address below. The Secretary must receive this proposal no later than September 16, 2009.

If you want to present a proposal at next year sannual meeting, without including the proposal in the proxy statement, or if you want to nominate one or more directors, you must provide written notice to the Corporate Secretary at the address below. The Secretary must receive this notice not earlier than October 27, 2009, and not later than November 26, 2009. Nominations of directors may be made at the annual meeting of stockholders only by or at the direction of the Board, or by any stockholder entitled to vote at the meeting who complies with the above described notice procedure.

Notice of a proposal must include, for each matter: a brief description of the matter to be brought before the meeting; the reasons for bringing the matter before the meeting; your name, address, the class and number of shares you own; and any material interest you may have in the proposal.

Notice of a nomination must include your name, address, the class and number of shares you own; the name, age, business address, residence address and principal occupation of the nominee; and the number of shares beneficially owned by the nominee. It must also include the information that would be required to be disclosed in the solicitation of proxies for election of directors under the federal securities laws. You must submit the nominee consent to be elected and to serve. Deere may require any nominee to furnish any other information, within reason, that may be needed to determine the eligibility of the nominee.

Directors of Deere must tender their resignation from the Board upon any material change in their occupation, career or principal business activity, including retirement. Directors must retire from the Board upon the first annual meeting of stockholders following the directors 71st birthday.

Proponents must submit stockholder proposals and recommendations for nomination as a director in writing to the following address:

Corporate Secretary
Deere & Company
One John Deere Place
Moline, Illinois 61265-8098

The Secretary will forward the proposals and recommendations to the Corporate Governance Committee for consideration.

COST OF SOLICITATION

Deere pays the cost of the annual meeting and the cost of soliciting proxies. In addition to soliciting proxies by mail, Deere has made arrangements with brokers, banks and other holders of record to send proxy materials to you, and Deere will reimburse them for their expenses in doing so.

Deere has retained Georgeson Inc., a proxy soliciting firm, to assist in the solicitation of proxies, for an estimated fee of \$10,000 plus reimbursement of certain out-of-pocket expenses. In addition to their usual duties, directors, officers and a few certain other employees of Deere may solicit proxies personally or by telephone, fax or e-mail. They will not receive special compensation for these services.

For the Board of Directors,

Moline, Illinois January 15, 2009 GREGORY R. NOE Secretary

73

APPENDIX A

OF DEERE & COMPANY CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICIES

NYSE Standards of Independence

A director may not be considered independent if the director does not meet the criteria for independence established by the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) and applicable law. A director is considered independent under the NYSE criteria if the board finds that the director has no material relationship with the Company. Under the NYSE rules, a director will not be considered independent if, within the past three years:

- the director has been employed by Deere, either directly or through a personal or professional services agreement:
- an immediate family member of the director was employed by Deere as an executive officer;
- the director receives more than \$100,000 per year in direct compensation from Deere, other than for service as an interim chairman or CEO and other than director and committee fees and pension or other forms of deferred compensation for prior service (provided such compensation is not contingent in any way on continued service):
- an immediate family member of the director receives more than \$100,000 per year in direct compensation from Deere, other than for service as a non-executive employee and other than director and committee fees and pension or other forms of deferred compensation for prior service (provided such compensation is not contingent in any way on continued service);
- the director was affiliated with or employed by Deere s independent auditor;
- an immediate family member of the director was affiliated with or employed in a professional capacity by Deeres independent auditor;
- a Deere executive officer has served on the compensation committee of a company that, at the same time, employed the director or an immediate family member of the director as an executive officer; or
- the director is employed, or the immediate family member of a director is employed as an executive officer of another company and the annual payments to, or received from Deere exceed in any single fiscal year the greater of \$1 million or 2% of such other company\(\sigma\) consolidated gross annual revenues.

Categorical Standards of Independence

The Board of Directors has established the following additional categorical standards of independence to assist it in making independence determinations:

Business Relationships. Any payments by Deere to a business employing, or 10% or more owned by, a director or an immediate family member of a director for goods or services, or other contractual arrangements, must be made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with non-affiliated persons. The following relationships are not considered material relationships that would impair a director independence:

• if a director (or an immediate family member of the director) is an officer of another company that does business with Deere and the annual sales to, or purchases from Deere during such company preceding fiscal year are less than one percent of the gross annual revenues of such company;

A-1

- if a director is a partner of or of counsel to a law firm, the director (or an immediate family member of the director) does not personally perform any legal services for Deere, and the annual fees paid to the firm by Deere during such firm preceding fiscal year does not exceed \$100,000;
- if a director is a partner, officer or employee of an investment bank or consulting firm, the director (or an immediate family member of the director) does not personally perform any investment banking or consulting services for Deere, and the annual fees paid to the firm by Deere during such firm preceding fiscal year does not exceed \$100,000.

For purposes of these standards, <code>Deere</code> shall mean Deere & Company and its direct and indirect subsidiaries, and <code>Deere</code> shall have the meaning set forth in the NYSE independence rules, as may be amended from time to time.

Relationships with Not-for-Profit Entities. A director sindependence will not be considered impaired solely for the reason that the director or an immediate family member is an officer, director, or trustee of a foundation, university, or other not-for-profit organization that receives from Deere or its foundation during any of the prior three fiscal years, contributions in an amount not exceeding the greater of \$1 million or two percent of the not-for profit organization aggregate annual charitable receipts during the entity fiscal year. (Any automatic matching of employee charitable contributions by Deere or its foundation is not included in Deeres contributions for this purpose.) All contributions by Deere in excess of \$100,000 to not-for-profit entities with which the director is affiliated shall be reported to the Corporate Governance Committee and may be considered in making independence determinations.

A-2

DIRECTIONS TO THE DEERE & COMPANY WORLD HEADQUARTERS One John Deere Place, Moline, Illinois 61265-8098

The annual meeting will be held in the auditorium of the Deere & Company World Headquarters, which is located at One John Deere Place, Moline, Illinois. John Deere Place intersects the north side of John Deere Road east of 70th Street, Moline. The entrance to the World Headquarters and parking are on the east side of the building.

From Chicago (or the east)

Take I-290 (Eisenhower Expressway) west to I-88 West (East-West Tollway) which turns into IL5/John Deere Road. Follow IL5/John Deere Road to John Deere Place. Turn right onto John Deere Place. Follow for about 1/4 mile. Turn left onto the World Headquarters grounds. Follow the signs to parking on the east side of the building.

From Des Moines (or the west)

Take I-80 east to exit number 298. Exit onto I-74 East. Follow for about 9 1/4 miles to the IL5 East/John Deere Road exit (Exit number 4B). Exit onto IL5 East/John Deere Road. Follow IL5/John Deere Road east for 3.3 miles to John Deere Place. Turn left onto John Deere Place. Follow for about 1/4 mile. Turn left onto the World Headquarters grounds. Follow the signs to parking on the east side of the building.

From Peoria (or the south)

Take I-74 west to the I-280 West exit. Exit onto I-280 West. Follow for about 10 miles to exit number 18A. Exit onto I-74 West. Follow for about 1/2 mile to the IL5 East/John Deere Road exit (Exit number 4B). Exit onto IL5 East/John Deere Road. Follow IL5/John Deere Road east for 3.3 miles to John Deere Place. Turn left onto John Deere Place. Follow for 1/4 mile. Turn left onto the World Headquarters grounds. Follow the signs to parking on the east side of the building.

DEERE & COMPANY STOCKHOLDER RELATIONS ONE JOHN DEERE PLACE MOLINE, IL 61265-8098

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT.
THANK YOU FOR VOTING!
VOTE BY TELEPHONE AND INTERNET
24 HOURS A DAY, 7 DAYS A WEEK

VOTE BY TELEPHONE - 1-800-690-6903

Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions up until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time the day before the meeting date. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then follow the instructions.

VOTE BY INTERNET - www.proxyvote.com

Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of information up until 11:59 P.M. Eastern Time the day before the meeting date. Have your proxy card in hand when you access the web site and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form.

VOTE BY MAIL

Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope we have provided or return it to Deere & Company, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717.

Your telephone or Internet vote authorizes the named proxies to vote in the same manner as if you marked, signed and returned the proxy card.

If you have submitted your proxy by telephone or the Internet there is no need for you to mail back your proxy.

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS: DEERE1 KEEP THIS PORTION F
DETACH AND RETURN T

THIS PROXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED.

DEERE & COMPANY

Vote on Directors

The Directors recommend a vote FOR all Nominees.		For A	gainst	Abstain
1a.	Election of Director: Crandall C. Bowles	o	0	o
1b.	Election of Director: Vance D. Coffman	o	0	O
1c.	Election of Director: Clayton M. Jones	O	0	o

Election of o o 1d. Director: Thomas H. Patrick For address changes and/or comments, please check this box and write them on the back where indicated. (Please sign, date and return this proxy in the enclosed postage prepaid envelope.) To receive your materials electronically in the future, please go to www.icsdelivery.com/de to enroll. **Vote on Proposals** The Directors recommend a For Against Abstain vote FOR the following proposals: Ratification of the 0 appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2009. Stockholder Proposal o 0 0 #1 - Annual Election of Directors

o

o

o

o

o

0

2.

3.

4.

5.

proposals:

The Directors recommend a vote AGAINST the following

> Executive Compensation

Stockholder Proposal

#2 - Advisory Vote on

Stockholder Proposal

and Chairman Responsibilities

#3 - Separation of CEO

74

Signature
[PLEASE Signature
SIGN Date (Joint Date
WITHIN Owners)
BOX]

Dear Stockholders:

It is a pleasure to invite you to the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Deere & Company. The meeting will be held at 10 A.M. central time on Wednesday, February 25, 2009, at the Deere & Company World Headquarters, One John Deere Place, Moline, Illinois.

The enclosed Notice of the Meeting and Proxy Statement covers the formal business of the meeting, which includes election of the named Directors, the ratification of the independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2009, three stockholder proposals and any other business that properly comes before the meeting. The rules of conduct for the meeting include the following:

rules of conduct for the meeting include the following: 1. No cell phones, cameras, sound equipment or recording devices may be brought into the auditorium. 2. There will be a discussion period at the end of the meeting. Questions are to be addressed to the Chairman. If you wish to present a question or comment, please wait for an attendant to provide a microphone, then begin by stating your name, indicating the city and state where you reside, and confirming that you are a stockholder. 3. The Chairman is authorized to impose reasonable time limits on the remarks of individual stockholders and has discretion to rule on any matters that arise during the meeting. Personal grievances or claims are not appropriate subjects for the meeting. Voting results announced at the meeting by the Inspectors of Voting 4.

Voting results announced at the meeting by the Inspectors of Voting are preliminary. Final results will be included in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the second quarter of fiscal 2009.

5. Pagers and similar devices should be silenced.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Stockholder Meeting to be Held on February 25, 2009: The proxy statement and annual report to security holders are available on Deere's Internet site at www.JohnDeere.com/stock.

Detach Proxy Card Here

n n

DEERE2

DEERE & COMPANY PROXY- ANNUAL MEETING / 25 FEBRUARY 2009

Solicited by the Board of Directors for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Deere & Company on February 25, 2009.

The undersigned appoints each of Robert W. Lane and Gregory R. Noe, attorney and proxy, with full power of substitution, on behalf of the undersigned, and with all powers the undersigned would possess if personally present, to vote all shares of Common Stock of Deere & Company that the undersigned would be entitled to vote at the above Annual Meeting and any adjournment thereof.

The shares represented by this proxy will be voted as specified and, in the discretion of the proxies, on all other matters.

Please mark, date and sign your name exactly as it appears on this proxy and return this proxy in the enclosed envelope. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, trustee, guardian or officer of a corporation, please give your full title as such. For joint accounts, each joint owner should sign.

THIS PROXY IS CONTINUED ON THE REVERSE SIDE. PLEASE SIGN ON THE REVERSE SIDE AND RETURN PROMPTLY.

Address Changes/Comments:

(If you noted any Address Changes/Comments above, please mark corresponding box on the reverse side.)